Southampton Marine and Maritime Institute

Southampton

Maritime research. University of Southampton

The University of Southampton has created a Southampton Marine and Maritime Institute (SMMI). The SMMI will eventually be located alongside Lloyd's Register and will form the initial stage of the development of the Centre of Excellence on the redeveloped Boldrewood Campus of the University, due for completion in 2014. This has resulted in an investment of about £120M in a new campus, the largest such businessfocused endeavour in any UK university.

The vision for SMMI is to be the world's leading centre for education, research and innovation in marine and maritime studies. Our mission is to have a transformational impact on society globally through our research, innovative ideas and solutions, as well as supplying highly skilled graduates for the marine and maritime sectors.

Our research addresses important societal issues under four thematic headings:

- Climate and environment
- Energy and resources
- Trade and Transport
- Society and government

This book contains posters covering the research themes that were presented at the VIP Launch of the SMMI in Southampton on 27th March 2012.

Contents

Climate and Environment

Sea-level probability for the last deglaciation: A statistical analysis of far-field records. Stanford, J.	14
Managing the English Coastline: the Development of the Tyndall Coastal Simulator. Mokrech, M.	15
Simulating the Bed Topography of Submarine Meanders. Darby, S.	16
Geo-Distributed Service Orientated Architecture for Marine Environmental Risks & Decision-Support Systems. Sabeur, Z.	17
Development of an integrated model to determine the impacts of climate change on coastal recession. Carpenter, N.	18
A Systems Analysis of Coastal Flooding using the SPRC Model. Nicholls, R.	19
Ocean Modelling & Forecasting (OMF). Marsh, R.	20
Global Port Cities with High Exposure to Coastal Water Level Extremes. Hanson, S.	21
Impacts and Costs of Sea-level Rise. Brown, S.	22
Hotspot Ecosystem Research and Man's Impact on European Seas. Billett, D.	23
The role of the ocean in Earth's changing climate. Byfield, V.	24
Coastal & Shelf Sea Research. Thompson, C.	25
Intertidal Mud Runnels in the Severn Estuary. Carling, P.	26
Facilitating Fish Movements between the Sea and Freshwater in Developed Coastal Zones: Engineering Solutions to Challenges of Fish Passage. Kemp, P.	27
In Situ Lab on a Chip Sensors for Measurement of Marine Biochemistry. Mowlem, M.	28
Geology and Geophysics Research Group. Bull, J.	29
Underwater Anthropogenic Noise. Humphrey, V.	30
Anthropogenic Noise from Offshore Wind Farm Construction. Humphrey, V.	31
Exploring Beneath an Antarctic Ice Shelf with the Autosub3 AUV. McPhail, S.	32
Sustained Observations in the Atlantic and Southern Oceans. Smythe-Wright, D.	33
Mapping and Understanding the External Engagement of the University of Southampton in the MARITIME Sector Comunian, R.	34
Serpent Project - Science and Industry in Partnership. Bett, B.	35
National Marine Facilities Sea Systems - An overview. Thorn, A.	36
Deep-water Science and Survey. Bett, B.	37
Geographic Information Systems (GIS) for the Marine and Coastal Zone. Hill, C.	38
Marine Environmental Data Management. Hill, C.	39
Minimising the Propulsive Power Consumption of a Fleet of AUVs. Wilson, P.	40
Using Ships of Opportunity to Study the Oceans. Hydes, D.	41
Bubble Acoustics. Leighton , T.	42

Energy and Resources

Maritime Energy – Sustainable and Secure. Hudson, D.	44		
Deep-sea Mineral Resources and Environmental Management. Billett, D.	45		
Sustainable Catalysis for Renewable Marine Energy. Raja, R.			
Vibrational Power Flow Analysis of Nonlinear Dynamic Systems and Applications. Xiong, Y.	47		
The Influence of Surface Waves on the Added Resistance of Merchant Ships. Hudson, D.	48		
Wave Making Drag Prediction for Improved Design of Marine Crafts. Tan, M.	49		
Low Carbon and Hazardous Emissions Shipping . Turnock, S.	50		
Investigation of Numerical Methods for Achieving Energy Efficient Ships. Turnock, S.	51		
Investigation of Wall-Bounded Turbulence over Sparsely Distributed Roughness. Tan, M.	52		
Smart Materials and Structures with Hybrid Nonlinear Vibration Control for Marine Applications. Shenoi, RA.	53		
Using Synthetic Turbulence as an Inlet Condition for Large Eddy Simulations. Humphrey, V.	54		
Passive-Adaptive Composite Structures for Unsteady Fluid Loading. Boyd, S.	55		
Interactions of Fluid and Soft Bodied Structures with Applications to Wave Energy Device. Tan, M.	56		
Design and Development of Effective Nonlinear Energy Harvesters. Xiong, Y.	57		
Design and Development of Duct-Diffuser Augmented Propeller Low Head Hydro Turbines. Turnock, S.	58		
Adaptive Composite Blades for Horizontal Axis Tidal Turbines. Turnock, S.	59		
Tidal Turbine Flow Field Effects. Myers, L.	60		
Wave and Tidal Energy Research. Myers, L.	61		
Modelling Large Arrays of Tidal Turbines. Myers, L.	62		
Wave and Tidal Energy Experimental Studies. Myers, L.	63		
Wave and Tidal Energy Device Development. Myers, L.	64		
High Voltage Subsea Cable Systems at the Tony Davies High Voltage Laboratory. Lewin, P.	65		
Structural Analysis and Loads for a Modular Nuclear Merchant Ship. Shenoi, RA.	66		
The Tony Davies High Voltage Laboratory. Lewin, P.	67		
Gyroscopic Energy Harvesting. Townsend, N.	68		
Power Flow Active Control of Aeroelastic Flutter for a Nonlinear Airfoil with Flap. Xiong, Y.	69		
Low Carbon Ship Design. Hudson, D.	70		
Society and Government			
The Portus Project. Earl, G.	72		
Jewish Maritime History. Schlör, J.	73		
Humanities: Communities. Jones, S.	74		

Humanities: Trade. Petley, C. 75

Centre for Maritime Archaeology - Palaeolandscapes and Environmental Change. Blue, L.	76
Centre for Maritime Archaeology - Reconstructing Wrecks - Technology, Innovation and Social Change. Blue, L.	77
Centre for Maritime Archaeology - Development of Ports and Harbours. Blue, L.	78
Centre for Maritime Archaeology - Oceans and Emerging Identities. Blue, L.	79
Centre for Maritime Archaeology - Maritime Ethnography - Understanding the Past through the Present. Blue, L.	80
Centre for Maritime Archaeology - Heritage Management and Outreach. Blue, L.	81
Wider Lessons from Dunwich. Sear, D.	82
Revealing the Lost City of Dunwich - The Dunwich 2008 Project. Sear, D.	83
The 2008 Underwater Survey. Sear, D.	84
Revealing the Lost City of Dunwich - The Survey Results. Sear, D.	85
Maritime Sport and Leisure. Hudson, D.	86
Remembering the Titanic in 2012: 'City Branding', Civic Identity and Local Economic Development. Pinch, S.	87
The Marine and Coastal Access Act. Hall, S.	88
Sustainable Mud flats and Salt marshes. Foster, N.	89
Marine & Coastal Access-Impact. Hall, S.	90
Design of High Speed Craft from a Human Factors Perspective. Taunton, D.	91
National Marine Coordination Office. Hall, S.	92
Institute of Maritime Law. Staniland, H.	93
Centre for Maritime Archaeology - Research Services for Industry. Blue, L.	94
The Dunwich 2009 Project. Sear, D.	95
The Dunwich 2010 Project. Sear, D.	96
Effects of Vibration and Low-Frequency Motions on Passengers and Crew. Griffin, M.	97
Human Factors in the Design of High Speed Marine Craft. Nikolić, D.	98
Trade and Transport	
Trade and Transport Delphin2: An Over Actuated Autonomous Underwater Vehicle for Manoeuvring Research, Taunton, D.	100
Vehicle for Manoeuvring Research. Taunton, D. Nature in Manoeuvrable Bio-Locomotive	100
Engineering (NIMBLE). Blake, J.	101
Swimming Data Capture. Turnock, S.	102
Unstructured MEL Modelling of 3D Ship Hydrodynamics. Temarel, P.	103
Nonlinear Hydrodynamic Analysis of Floating Structures Subject to Ocean Environments. Chen, Z.	104
Numerical Investigation into Potential Flow Around High-Speed Hydrofoil Assisted Craft. Hearn , G.	105
Numerical Investigations on Fluid-Structure Interactions Using Particle Based Methods for Marine Applications. Tan, M.	106
Hydroelastic Inflatable Boats: A Possible Design Methodology. Wilson, P.	107
Damage Assessment Tool for Marine Structures. Sobey, A.	108
Strength Assessment of Damaged Steel Ship Structures. Shenoi, RA.	109
Integrated Design for Production to Ensure Sustainability in Marine Transportation. Blake, J.	110
Damaged Composites - Marine Structures. Shenoi, RA.	110
Summed Composites marine bractares, offenoi, MA.	***

Infra-Red Technique for Damage Tolerant Sandwich Structures.

Barton, J.	112
Analysis of Adhesively-bonded Composite Joints. Boyd, S.	113
Pulse Phase Thermography and its Application to Defects in Adhesively Bonded Joints. Barton, J.	114
Infrared Sensing for Materials Characterisation and Damage Assessment. Barton, J.	115
Full-Field Optical Techniques for High Strain Rate Behaviour Investigation on Glass Fibre Reinforced Polymers. Barton, J.	116
The Use of Optical Techniques to Assess the Performance of Composite Materials under High Velocity Deformations. Barton, J.	117
Synchronised IRT and DIC capture to Measure the Strain Rate Dependency of Fibre Reinforced Composites. Barton, J.	118
Permeability and Cure Measurements in the Vacuum Assisted Resin Infusion Process for Validation of PAM-RTM Simulation. Boyd, S.	119
Thermal Degradation of Polymeric Foam Cored Sandwich Structures. Barton, J.	120
Hygrothernal Ageing and the Implications on Adopting Sustainable Composite Materials for Structural Marine Applications. Blake, J.	121
Modelling Characterisation and Development of New Magnetorheological Materials with Enhanced Vibration Control Performance. Xiong, Y.	122
Crust Formation on Natural Rubber. Hearn, G.	123
An Improved Concurrent Engineering Framework through Incorporation of Management Methodologies. Macbeth, D.	124
RNLI Advanced Technology Partnership. Shenoi, RA.	125
Ship Hydrodynamics - Wave Induced Motions and Loads. Temarel, P.	126
Ship Hydrodynamics: Sloshing. Tan, M.	127
Sonar System Development. Humphrey, V.	128
Lightweight and High Performance Ships and Boats. Shenoi, RA.	129
Lloyd's Register Educational Trust University Technology Centre. Shenoi, RA.	130
MoD Centre of Excellence in Marine Structures, Shenoi, RA.	131
Nickel-Aluminium Bronze Pitting Corrosion in Seawater. Wood, R.	132
Marine Biofouling and Antifouling Coatings. Wood, R.	133
Noise and Vibration Control. Dixon, J.	134
Management of Maritime Operations. Macbeth,D.	135
Power Flow Active Control of Aeroelastic Flutter for a Nonlinear Airfoil with Flap. Xiong, Y.	
Smart Materials and Structures with Hybrid Nonlinear Vibration Control for Marine Applications. Xiong, Y.	
Investigation of Numerical Methods for Achieving Energy Efficient Ships. Turnock, S.	138
Low Carbon and Hazardous Emissions Shipping. Turnock, S.	139
Numerical Modelling of Scour around Complex 3D Structures. Turnock, S.	140
Wave Making Drag Prediction for Improved Design of Marine Crafts. Tan, M.	141
Influence of Ultimate Strength on Aged and Corroded Ships. Shenoi, RA.	142
The Influence of Surface Waves on the Added Resistance of Merchant Ships. Hudson, D.	143
Vibrational Power Flow Analysis of Nonlinear Dynamic Systems and Applications. Xiong, Y.	144

Maritime Research at the University of Southampton 5



Support for Business

With over 40% of our annual research conducted with industry, and being the top UK University for working with SMEs, industrial partnerships are strategically very important to the University of Southampton. Whether you are a large, world-leading company, an SME, a not-for-profit organisation or a charity, we are keen to develop long-term, mutually beneficial relationships with you.

From solving a problem via a programme of research, to accessing new skills to enable you to embrace a new opportunity or develop new products, the University offers a variety of mechanisms in which you can collaborate with us. Wherever possible, these will also maximise the use of any grant funding that may be available to minimise the cost to your company.

Supporting your research and development

Being a leading research University, there are many ways in which we can help support research and development in your business. From commercial access to world-leading knowledge and facilities, through collaborative research, to sponsoring a PhD, we can help you develop the products and services to keep you at the leading edge in the global market place.

Accessing new knowledge and expertise

Whether it's recruiting our graduates, engaging our academic staff as consultants, or transferring new knowledge into your organisation via a grant funded Knowledge Transfer Partnership, we have all the leading knowledge required to allow you to embrace the opportunities, or resolve the problems affecting your company.

Staff development

The University of Southampton is at the leading edge of new ideas and forward-thinking research. By sharing the latest knowledge, ideas and techniques, we can help you to develop your people's skills, strengths and thinking. If you believe that the quality of your people profoundly affects your business performance, and if you want practical ideas to take your business forward, the University's professional development opportunities can help. We will connect you with specialists in your field who will help you develop your people and prepare your business for the future.

We understand that every organisation has a unique set of needs, so please visit the Business section of our website, or contact us to discuss your specific requirements.

Contact: +44 (0)23 8059 8708 or email us at smmienq@soton.ac.uk

Commercial services

Our consultancy services give businesses unrivalled access to the University's world-class expertise and facilities in many areas, including engineering sciences, oceanography and physical sciences. Consultancy can be delivered through our well-established enterprise units, which have dedicated and professional teams solely deployed to work on projects with external organisations, or via academic consultancy, which could involve short or long-term projects and may be linked to other activities such as the use of our specialist facilities.

Enterprise units

We host a number of highly respected professional enterprise units, providing consultancy services including:

Wolfson Unit for Marine Technology & Industrial Aerodynamics (WUMTIA)

Tank testing, wind tunnel testing, consultancy, design software, onboard systems and innovative research for ship, yacht and small craft design, naval architecture, marine technology and industrial aerodynamics.

Research Institute for Industry (RIfI)

Multi-disciplinary projects in engineering sciences, FEA analysis, cryogenics, materials and surface engineering. RIfI is a cutting-edge applied research organisation, which supports industrial partners in specialist fields of engineering.

ISVR Consulting (Sound and Vibration)

Acoustics, noise, signal processing, modelling, automotive refinement, testing, shock, dynamics. The Institute of Sound and Vibration Research carries out world-class research in the field of sound and vibration.

IT Innovation Centre

The IT Innovation Centre specialises in researching, developing, engineering and integrating innovative IT systems.

GeoData Institute

Environmental services, Geographic Information Systems (GIS), database and web development. The GeoData Institute provides environmental data management, analysis and processing to the marine and coastal sector.

Academic consultancy

Access to marine and maritime expertise and facilities is also available by engaging with our world-leading research centres throughout the University. The following are just a few of the subject areas where we can engage, and please contact us for information about areas not listed here.

Marine corrosion and erosion

The National Centre for Advanced Tribology at Southampton (nCATS) provides research and consultancy on marine corrosion and erosion to help solve a wide range of industry problems, including desalination plants, oil and gas valves, pipe systems loss of contaminant, pump impellers and coatings.

Maritime law

The Institute of Maritime Law (IML) is the UK's leading centre for teaching, research and consultancy in maritime law.

Maritime archaeology

The Centre for Maritime Archaeology (CMA) is committed to the promotion and practice of maritime archaeology, undertaking collaborative projects from a local to international scale.

Maritime history

The Parkes Institute focuses on research by non-Jewish and Jewish scholars and students into the field of relations between Judaism and other religions, with particular expertise in Jewish Maritime History.

Coastal research vessels

Ranging from 5.64 meters to 19.75 meters, our well equipped vessels are available for commercial hire for research, surveying, geophysics, and diving. Supported by highly qualified crews and staff, the vessels are used as a resource to support research and teaching in coastal waters.



Accessing knowledge and skills for your business

Whether you are looking to recruit at graduate level, or require access to grant funded graduate or post graduate skills to transfer new knowledge and understanding into your organisation, the University has a range of ways to assist.

Knowledge Transfer Partnerships

If your company needs access to new knowledge or expertise, a Knowledge Transfer Partnership (KTP) can place a high-calibre graduate into your business, supported by an academic expert and use of our leading facilities. These are for high-impact projects seeking to significantly boost the profitability of your business, and the costs of these are met by up to 67% grant funding. Companies eligible for KTP will typically reap an annual increase in annual profit of over £220,000 (KTP Annual Report 2007/08)

EngDs from the University's Transport and the Environment Doctoral Training Centre

An EngD takes elements of both an MBA and a PhD to deliver of programme of research to tackle issues affecting your business. The first year is spent studying management units, with the following three years seeing the student based in your company. As the majority of the cost of this programme is met by the Engineering and Physical Sciences Research Council, the cost to your company can be as low as £8k per year.

Graduate recruitment

Career Destinations offers a range of services designed to enable employers of all sizes to raise their company profile and promote their recruitment opportunities and engage with our students and graduates. We encourage organisations to register for free on the University's Employer Portal. From here organisations can upload, edit and remove vacancies as required and reach the full student body of over 18,000 undergraduates and 5,000 postgraduates as well as recent graduates. Additionally, you can indicate which services (e.g. Career Fairs, Placements, Knowledge Transfer Partnerships) are of interest, ensuring that you are notified when opportunities in your organisation's areas of interest arise: www.southampton.ac.uk/ careers/employerportal

Student projects

Many of our students undertake projects for our wide range of marine and maritime industrial partners. These have included, for example, reviewing the effectiveness of fishery protection operations for the Norwegian Coastguard, planning for the optimal placement of containers within the export yard at Southampton container terminals, or analysis to identify indicators of vessels 'at risk' for Lloyd's Register. Is there a similar issue we could help you with?

Continuing professional development (CPD)

We can provide a number of CPD and executive education courses for the marine industry. These courses will provide you with the advanced technical and managerial skills needed to enhance innovation and business competitiveness. New and emerging technologies are taught in conjunction with business and management applications.

CJR Propulsion case study

With one of the most technically advanced facilities in Europe, CJR Propulsion is a world leader in the design and manufacture of shafts, propellers, rudders and other associated stern gear for a variety of marine vessels, such as larger pleasure boats, ferries and other working boats.

CJR Propulsion worked with the University of Southampton's Faculty of Engineering and the Environment to apply CFD to propeller design to improve boat speed and fuel efficiency, as well as reducing the noise and vibration.

The collaboration has been very successful leading to:

- Increased energy efficiency though optimally matched propeller and associated stern gear
- Significantly reduced the potential for erosion at high speed
- Effected a step-change in the Company's business processes

Land & Water Services case study

Land and Water Services is an award winning group of companies that specialises in marine based civil engineering, dredging and remediation projects. Land and Water Plant operates the largest fleet of specialist long reach excavators and inland floating plant in the UK, available for hire anywhere in the UK or overseas.

Copper was originally used as the main ingredient in antifouling paints for boats to prevent algae and barnacles from attaching themselves to boats and slowing their movement. It was found that tributyltin compounds (TBT) were effective and longer lasting. However after years of use TBT was established to have disastrous effects on marine life and is now considered to be a severe marine pollutant.

Land and Water Services worked with the University of Southampton's Chemistry unit to evaluate and develop viable methods for the remediation of harbour and shipyard sediments that are contaminated with the marine anti-foulant tributyltin.



RNLI case study

The Royal National Lifeboat Institution (RNLI) currently supports 300 lifeboats based at 235 lifeboat stations around the UK and Ireland. The sophisticated vessels are engineered to high standards so the volunteer crews can carry out rescue operations in the worst sea conditions. Equipping and maintaining the fleet can be expensive. A Tamar class lifeboat costs £2.7million to buy and equip, but has a working life of around 50 years.

The RNLI worked with the Southampton's Management School, and its Engineering and the Environment unit, to develop computer models to capture the commercial and logistic issues around the costs of building and maintaining the lifeboat fleet.

The project looked at how the technical design issues involved in deciding how frequently the boats and their equipment need maintenance, in order to better manage these costs. The information needed to fit in with industry standards and relate to the existing software.

Climate and Environment

The ocean covers approximately two thirds of the Earth's surface, which means it is the largest environment for living things on Earth. Apart from the natural resources sustained in and by this environment, the oceans are also a great influence on the earth's climate.

Understanding the behaviour of the ocean surface waves, the sub-sea currents and air circulation currents is vital for climate predictions. Equally important is knowledge about the subsea environment and how it promotes habitats for living organisms. Extracting oil and gas from deeper waters in the oceans also represents ever greater challenges in scientific and technological domains. Our interests range from understanding of the basic science of influencing the behaviour of the environment, to searching for the resources within it. We are developing technology for managing and extracting resources, and the legal instruments, which define the use of the maritime and ocean space.

The University of Southampton undertakes research in diverse areas related to climate and the marine environment.

Sea-level probability for the last deglaciation: A statistical analysis of far-field records

Dr J Stanford



Managing the English Coastline: the Development of the Tyndall Coastal Simulator

Dr M Mokrech

CE₂



Professor S Darby

CE3

Environment

Simulating the Bed Topography of Submarine Meanders

Description of the research

Submarine meanders scoured by turbidity currents are common features of the deep ocean floor. Hydrographic surveys have revealed aspects of their planform morphology, but their deep water location inhibits access, so knowledge of their fluid mechanics, sediment transport and bed morphology remains limited, conceptual models having been developed by analogy with the well understood mechanics of fluvial meanders, due to similarities between their planform shapes.



However, recent experimental investigations [*Corney* et al., 2006; *Keevil et al.*, 2006] have revealed that **the** secondary flow structure in submarine channels with density-driven gravity currents is the opposite to that of fluvial bends (Figure 1). Unlike sub-aerial channels, in which the downstream velocity maximum occurs near the surface, gravity currents exhibit a near-bed maximum. This distinction results in the occurrence of outwards near-bed secondary flow, whereas near-bed secondary flow is directed inwards in the case of fluvial bends.



These data reveal a spectacular meandering channel system (location: $\sim 55.5N_137.5N$) at a depth of -3000 m, and with dimensions (wavelength = 39.8 km; sinuosity = 1.9; width = 4.75 km, depth = 115 m) consistent with other submarine channels

Bathymetric survey data for the Gulf of Alaska region showing the meander system and specific bend modelled in this study. Data from: http://www.ccom-jhc.unh.edu/

for more information please contact: School of Geography, University of Southampton, <u>s.E.Darby@soton.ac.uk</u> Web: <u>www.geog.soton.ac.uk</u> School of Earth and Environment, University of Leeds <u>J.Peakall@see.leeds.ac.uk</u> Web: <u>www.see.leeds.ac.uk</u>

This research explores the implications of this behaviour with respect to the bed morphology of submarine channel bends.

Southampton

School of Geography

Research results

Our model replicates the relatively flat transverse bed profiles observed in the study bend very well, at least in those parts of the bend at, and downstream of, the apex (i.e., in the region of fully developed flow)

Figures below indicates that submarine meanders exhibit key differences in bed morphology relative to equivalent fluvial bends:

- In submarine bends the outer-bank pool is shallower and the 'point-bar' is less pronounced, giving a transverse bed profile that is much flatter
- In submarine bends the 'point-bar' is located further downstream of the bend apex



www.southampton.ac.uk/smmi

Geo-Distributed Service Orientated Architecture for Marine Environmental Risks & Decision-Support Systems

Dr Z Sabeur



Development of an integrated model to determine the impacts of climate change on coastal recession

N Carpenter

CE5

Southampton

Development of an Integrated Model to Determine the Impacts of Climate Change on Coastal Recession

1) Problem Statement

Soft rock cliffs create geomorphologically diverse coastlines owing to the complex interactions between geology, combined with the applied forces of marine and terrestrial processes. They are highly susceptible to recession and one key challenge is to understand how climate change aspects (e.g. sealevel rise, increased seasonal rainfall) will alter this process. As such, traditional methods to predict recession (by extrapolation of historic rates) should no longer be considered acceptable when past conditions are not representative of the future. In response one alternative method is process-based numerical modelling, which enables system changes and process interactions to be simulated. However, this method is relatively in its infancy and many models are criticised for the generalised manner in which they treat cliff behaviour. This relates to the key assumption that it is coastal processes that drive recession. This may be problematic for complex cliff sites, potentially leading to inaccurate future predictions of cliff-top position if the effect of climatic factors on slope stability are omitted.

2) Research Description

The aim of this study is to develop a coupled, process-based model which considers the influence of both coastal *and* slope (geotechnical) processes on soft cliff recession. The model will be developed considering the complex study frontage of the southwest coast of the Isle of Wight, UK (Figure 1).



Figure 1: Isle of Wight Study Frontage This 17km site has a varied soft rock geology, exhibiting a series of headlands and a range of cliff behavioural units. Therefore, it provides strong opportunities to validate the more integrated coastal cliff recession model than those currently available.

3) Preliminary Results

Considering the complexity of the cliff recession process, the first stage has been to develop a generalised conceptual model (Figure 2) to understand all systems, parameters and processes involved in the cliff recession process. This highlights the plethora of interactions and feedback mechanisms within the cliff system and subsequently will form the foundation for the development of the numerical model.



www.southampton.ac.uk

Contact: Natasha Carpenter (PhD student) Civil Engineering and the Environment nec1v07@soton.ac.uk,

Professor R Nicholls

CE6

Southampton Innovative technologies for safer European coasts in a changing climate A systems analysis of coastal flooding using the SPRC model

Problem Statement

Increasing rates of sea-level rise and concentration of coastal assets are likely to increase damages due to coastal flooding in future. Traditional coastal modelling works from the flood source outwards, estimating damage to receptors within the modelled floodplain. This method fails to pinpoint receptors critical to the health of the system. This has lead to oversights in coastal defence management with catastrophic flooding consequences such as in hurricane Katrina (USA), cyclone Sidr (Bangladesh) and storm Xynthia (France).

Research Description

This PhD is being undertaken within the EU THESEUS project (www.theseusproject.eu) based on eight case study sites across Europe. The PhD tackles flood modelling starting from the receptors rather than the sources, to gain an understanding of the system prior to application of flood models. The coastal flood system is studied using a systems linkage diagram based on the Source-Pathway-Receptor–Consequence (SPRC) model (Fig 1).

-	-	(n)
(beensen)	·[Fatamen]	· Hereptice
(e.g. waves)	(e.g. dunes)	Contempetitican
waves)	dunes)	(e.g. people flooded)
Figure 1: The S	ource – Pathway –	Receptor –
Consequence (SPRC) Conceptual	Model

Research impact

Preliminary Work

The simplistic version of the model shown in Fig 1 is developed into a more comprehensive description of the coastal flood system for the Dendermonde region of the Scheldt estuary, Belgium (Figure 2), one of the eight THESEUS case study sites. Based on land-use, it highlights possible connections between different elements. This analysis effectively illustrates the complexity of the system and the vulnerability in terms of connections of certain receptors.



Figure 2: The land-use map (left) and SPR Systems Linkage Diagram (right) for Dendermonde Town, Belgium.

The system diagram makes explicit prior to flood modelling several key points such as the interconnection between receptors, possibility of flooding from two directions and the possibility of flood propagation via the roads and railway. This can be used to selectively inform flood models. Further work will include development of system fault-trees for analysing flood risk and the effects of changes to elements on overall system health.

Coastal flood modelling until recently has been unable to pinpoint receptors critical to the health of the flood system and their relation to surrounding elements. This research will create a tool to facilitate an understanding of coastal flood systems in terms of the elements within, their interconnections with one another and their effect on the health of the system and its constituents. The research is funded by the EU THESEUS project and the preliminary concept has been presented at the EGU 2011 conference.

Siddharth Narayan (PhD Student supervised by Prof. Robert Nicholls WWW.SOuthampton.ac.uk and Dr. Derek Clarke), Faculty of Engineering and the Environment. Funded by the EU FP7 THESEUS project. sn3g08@soton.ac.uk

Dr R Marsh



Global Port Cities with High Exposure to Coastal Water Level Extremes

S Hanson



Dr S Brown



www.southampton.ac.uk

Dr Sally Brown & Prof Robert Nicholls, Faculty of Engineering and the Environment and Tyndall Centre for Climate Change Research. sb20@soton.ac.uk, R.J.Nicholls@soton.ac.uk

Hotspot Ecosystem Research and Man's Impact on **European Seas**

Dr D Billett

CE10

Environment and Resources Southampton

Hotspot ecosystem research and Man's impact on European seas

The HERMIONE project (Hotspot Ecosystem Research and Man's Impact on European Seas) is a new interdisciplinary project co-ordinated by the National Oceanography Centre, Southampton. Funded by the European Commission's Framework 7 Programme, it follows on the from the highly successful FP6 HERMES project.

HERMIONE sets out to investigate Europe's deep-sea ecosystems in terms of their distribution, dimensions and interconnections, and how they might be (or are already) affected by global change - including climate change, human impacts and large-scale events.

To achieve this, the HERMIONE Consortium comprises 38 partner institutions around Europe, including leading experts on slopes and basins, cold-water corals, seamount ecosystems, submarine canyons and chemosynthetic ecosystems. In addition, the project benefits from a dedicated team of socio-economists and policy experts, who will work with our scientists to provide knowledge to policymakers in support of deep-sea governance and sustainable management of resources.

HERMIONE will examine deep-sea ecosystems around Europe's margins, including:

•The Arctic, because of its importance in monitoring climate

change; •The Nordic margin with abundant cold-water corals, extensive hydrocarbon exploration and the Håkon Mosby mud volcano natural laboratory;

•The Celtic margin with a mid latitude canyon, cold water corals and the long term Porcupine Abyssal Plain monitoring site; •The Portuguese margin with its highly diverse canyons;

•Seamounts in the Atlantic and W. Mediterranean as important

biodiversity hotspots potentially under threat;The mid-Atlantic Ridge to link cold seep to hot seep

chemosynthetic studies; Mediterranean cold water cascading sites in the Gulf of Lions and outflows of the Adriatic and Aegean Seas.

At each study site, a range of multi- and interdisciplinary observations, measurements and experiments will be implemented to understand the ecosystems, their relationship to the surrounding physical environment, and how they might respond to change. As such, the project is underpinned by an ambitious cruise programme that involves over 1000 days of shiptime aboard Europe's research vessel fleet.



National Oceanography Centre, Southampton BUTY OF BOUTHAMPTON AND



bove: Cold-water corals in the Whittard Canyon, Celtic Margin. Image taken b ROV Isis during cruise JC36, summer 2009. Copyright NOCS

The multidisciplinary research under HERMIONE is designed to fill the knowledge gap about threatened deep-sea marine ecosystems and their environments. It will reveal the impact of man on these ecosystems, both directly - e.g. via bottom trawling - and indirectly via climate change. The results will feed national, regional (EU) and global policy and decision makers with the information needed to establish policies to ensure sustainable use of the deep ocean.



For further information: Prof Philip Weaver National Oceanography Centre, Southampton ppew@noc.soton.ac.uk www.eu-hermione.net



www.southampton.ac.uk

Dr V Byfield



Dr C Thompson



Professor P Carling



Facilitating Fish Movements between the Sea and Freshwater in Developed Coastal Zones: Engineering Solutions to Challenges of Fish Passage

Dr P Kemp

CE14

Southampton **Environment and migration** Facilitating fish movements between the sea and freshwater in developed coastal zones: engineering solutions to challenges of fish passage Impact The Research The research will provide engineers •The importance of shallow-water coastal and estuarine and managers with the critical "transitional" habitats is important for many economically information needed to design multisignificant fish species (e.g. salmon and trout, eel, mullet, sea bass, species fish passage and flounder). facilities/strategies to mitigate for the environmental impact of •Little is known of how fish utilise and move between these continued development of the habitats, and how habitat utilisation is linked to productivity and coastal zones (e.g., sea defences, tidal barrages and weirs, and tidal population viability. gates and sluices). •The impacts on fisheries of coastal development and associated habitat fragmentation and loss, exacerbated by climate change, are thought will likely be significant, but remain poorly defined. •Recent and future legislation (e.g. Water Framework Directive and Marine and Coastal Access Bill) has enhanced protection of transitional environments, yet there is a need to better understand how these systems function and how they are perturbed to identify mitigation solutions by engineering means. •Research conducted at the University of Southampton aims to investigate the importance of transitional habitats for multiple life phases of key target species and quantify the impacts of critical engineering structures on ecological integrity, particularly structures that impede the movements of fish between essential habitat. Engineering solutions to aid fish passage will be developed. In the field of fish passage research, the School of Civil Engineering and the Environment at the University of Southampton collaborates closely with, and is funded by, the Tidal flaps can Significantly Environment Agency, the Centre for Ecology and Hydrology, and block Fish movement the Game and Wildlife Conservation Trust. For more information see www.icer.soton.ac.uk www.southampton.ac.uk



In Situ Lab on a Chip Sensors for Measurement of Marine Biogeochemistry

Dr M Mowlem

CE15

In situ lab on a chip sensors for measurement of marine biogeochemistry

UNIVERSITY OF Southar

Matt Mowlem¹, David Barat¹, Robert Zmijan², Xi Huang², Maria-Nefeli Tsaloglou¹, Mahadji Bahi¹, Vincent Sieben², Alan Taberham², Iain Ogilvie², Cedric Floquet¹, David Owsianka¹, Hywel Morgan²

1) Sensors Development Group, National Oceanography Centre, Southampton

2)Nano Research Group, Electronics and Computer Science, University of Southampton

Introduction

Introduction Interconserption a crucial role in the prosperity and future of civilisation. They provide essential natural resources such as fish, minerals, offshore energy and a route for global transport of goods and resources. Natural biogeochemical opcles in the occases, provide "occeptent services", valued at USS19 tillion p.a., equivalent to the global GNP. The occases play a key role in climate regulation arguitably the most important environmental issue facing markind. Despite their global importance, the vast (1.3. x 10⁶ km3) occases remain largely under asmpled (in both space and time). This research develops in situ chemical and biological sensor technology to enable dense networks of autonomous sensors. The aim for this network is delivery of tubulquots and synoptic data on biogeochemical processes, which is essential for understanding, modelling, predicting, and managing our environment. Minaturisation of biogeochemical sensors has a number of advantages, but crucially it allows the low cost volume production of devices and hence should enable a paradigm shift in the quantity of data collected. Typically we see envisage that these sensors would be deployed on existing the Argo loar array which currently has -3600 free drifting floats in the workis oceans. These floats currently only measure temperature conductivity and depth. They have variable buoyancy and sink and refleat periodically allow measurements to a depth of -2000m. This research is developing an array of sensor types based on MicroSystem Technology (MST) and four are described here.

Chemical Sensing Marine chemistry (nutrients and pollutants in particular) is sensed with a lab-on-a-chip (LOC) chemical analyser. Fabricated from polymers a microfluidic chip is used to mix seawater with reagents that induce a colour change. This is measured precisely using an on chip dual beam spectrophotometer which compares the absorption of the reacted products to the absorption of the seawater sample. A number of colourimetic and florencence based protocols are widely used for analytical and environmental applications and hence this technology is in many senses generic. To date limits of the outer of 2010M are numler on concentrations of Fo, Min, NO₂, NO₂, and FO, using this device. Detection limits of the outer of 2010M are numler. its of the order of 200nM are routine



Figure 1: Lab-on-a-chip chemical sensor: a) Polymer microfluidic chip with dual beam spectrophotometer connected optically by fibres and fluids by tubing, b) assembled sensor system (Mt1) incorporating electronics and off chip pumps and valves, c) deployment of the system using a tethered oceanographic instrument package. The system operated continuously and without damage to the maximum depth tested (160m) Current research is enhancing the capability and ease of manufacture of the LOC and the complete system. This includes development of on-chip valves, new polymer microfabrication and bonding techniques, new optical systems, improved limit of detection and improved off chip pumping.

Cytometery

Cytometery A LOC cytometer counts and identifies phytoplankton present in seawater by measurement of their physical and optical properties. These microbes are central to many aspects of the ocean's economy. They fuel the marine tood web, that utimately leads to fish and marine biomass. They photosynthesise assimilating CQ, and so drawdow CO2 from the atmosphere and help to ameliorate the "greenhouse effect". Under conditions of high nutrients, they can grow eccessively making eutrophic conditions and harmful algal bioms possible. Counting and characterisation of phytoplankton is achieved in a microchannel. Phytoplankton are arranged into a train of single cells from through the detection region by injecting fluid ethiers due of the sample stream. Known as sheah for biometical properties of the cell, and optical fibres to illuminate and collect light from each phytoplankton.



re 2: LOC Cytometer: a) schematic of particle focusing using sheath flow b) Cytometer chip (Mk1) with rodes and contacts showing strong reflections, c) detail from the centre (detection region) of the chip rodes and contacts showing strong reflections. (c) detail from the centre (detection region) of the chip through (SBC) statistical definition of the later the lateratory and has successful counted and distinguished between different phylogenehics species in marked outwork. The base and control and same angestion of ICC and the statistical species in marked outwork. The base and control and examples the intervention are angestion of ICC and the statistical species in a marked outwork. The base and control and and and and and and the statistical of ICC and the species of the statistical species in a marked outwork. The base and the species intervention area and and and the species of ICC and the species of the statistical species of the species ilfleren phytoplankton species in a mixed culture. The results are equivalent to that obtained using a commercial top system. Current research is developing a submersible sensor system incorporating a new generation of LCC ology. This includes design and modelling of improved optics, designs using new polymer microfabrication and gretchingues, design and construction of an integrated optical, electronic and fluidic system, and characterisation ping technology.



Nucleic Acid Analysis A LOC analyser enables sor RNA union of A LCC analyser enables speciation and study of the physiological state of marine microorganisms by analysis of their RA LCC analyser enables speciation and study of the physiological state of marine microorganisms by analysis of their RAN using the Nucleic Acid Sequence Based Amplification (NASBA) protocol and fluorescence detection. Prior to NASBA amplification and detection a number of sample processing steps are required i.e. collection of seawater, fitration to collect and concentrate target physiolantion in a size range of interest, discuption of cells to yield RNA (lysis), extraction and purification of RNA. NASBA is then used to amplify and measure the concentration of specific target sequences. To date we have demonstrated lysis, NASBA and fluorescence detection on chip. Detection of amplified RNA is achieved by using a fluorescently labeled beacon (probe)



beacon (probe) formed from RNA This fluoresces when i hybridizes with the target RNA sequence To make the protoco quantitative an interna quantitative an interna control (IC) sequence of RNA is added at a known concentration but detected with a different fluorescen beacon with a differen emission wavelength This enables variability in amplification efficiency (which is subject to a number of environmental factors) to be accounted for in interpretation of the results.

Figure 3: RNA analyser a) Fluorescently labelled (propidium iodide) cells prior to lysis on chip showing defined nuclear perimeter b) on chip lysis demonstrated by ruptured nuclei c) overview of the NASBA amplification pathway, d) prototype chip for mixing of extracted RNA with reagents and fluorescence detection (diamods shaped chamber), o) lysis chip (prov substrate with lauminium (itanium electrodes) Current research is optimising lysis and fluorescence detection on chip and is designing new on and off chip systems for sample processing and RNA extraction.

Physical Sensing A microlabricated conductivity and temperature (CT) sensor enables measurement of these key physical parameters. Unlike the sensors above, small commercial CT sensors exist. However truly miniaturised CT sensors have insufficient performance to many applications including climate studies. High performance CT sensors are large (->20) and expensive (-£10k). This project aims to develop low cost initiaturised high performance CT sensors as shown in the table below. The existence of such a sensor would emable sensing from an animal tag (a, a fish tag) and would enable construction of complete sensor systems incorporating chemical biological and physical sensors.



Figure 4: Microfabricated Conductivity (7 electrode design) and temperature sensor. (resistive serpentine) Formed from Ti/Pt on pyrex with epoxy laminate insulation. Current research is testing the first prototype. The next goal is to evaluate and enhance long term stability and incorporate a bare Platinum disc microelectrode oxygen ensors and development of an Application Specific Integrated Circuit (ASIC) to perform signal conditioning with ultra miniaturised electronics.

Conclusions

Conclusions MST and miniaturisation techniques have been successfully applied to four key environmental metrology challenges. Initial results on the bench, and in deployments to 1600m demonstrate the effectiveness of this solution. Current research is optimising and enhancing this technology to produce robust and fully functional sensing systems using MST and promises to deliver a paradigm whilt in the data available to environmental science.

Acknowledgements
This work is funded through the NERC Oceans 2025 programme (theme 8.1), the collaborative EPSRC /NERC grant
EP/E016774/1, and an FP7 Integrated project (laboricii). Commercialisation is funded by NERC



Geology and Geophysics Research Group

Professor J Bull



For further details concerning the Geology and Geophysics Research Group contact co-chairs Jon Bull (bull)/isoton.ac.uk) or Ian Wright (Unright)/inoc soton.ac.uk)



Professor V Humphrey



Anthropogenic Noise from Offshore Wind Farm Construction

Professor V Humphrey

CE18

Southampton

Anthropogenic Noise from Offshore Wind Farm Construction

Background

A key element of the UK plan for the delivery of renewable energy is the development of offshore wind farms. It is envisaged that up to 10,000 additional turbines will be installed by 2020.

The favoured construction method is to drive a monopile (steel tube) into the seabed using a percussive (impact) hydraulic ram. These monopiles can be up to 6 m in diameter and are driven up to 25 m into the seabed. This piling process radiates high levels of impulsive noise into shallow coastal waters.

With a growing awareness of the potential impact of anthropogenic (man made) noise on marine life it is important to gain an improved understanding of the physics of the noise generation process and how the sound propagation into the shallow water environment is affected by the pile, hydraulic piling, seabed and water column characteristics.



Pile-driving a monopile (on right of picture) into seabed from a platform.

Research

This research aims to provide an improved understanding of the noise generation process via a combination of numerical modelling and experimental measurement. It will eventually include:

- Finite Element modelling of the impact process in order to determine the acoustic field distribution near to the source;
- Numerical modelling of the sound propagation through the seabed and water column;
- Scaled laboratory experiments to obtain confirmation of the generated sound under controlled conditions, with easily varied system parameters;
- Comparison with data collected at sea to verify the performance of the models developed;
- Calculation of acoustic metrics used in assessing the impact on marine life; these include the peak pulse pressure, and pulse energy - important for calculation of sound exposure level (SEL).

www.southampton.ac.uk



Numerically modelled signal loss as a function of range from a uniform 200 Hz extended source in 40 m of water and 20 m of sediment.

Impact

An improved understanding of the generation of underwater pile-driving noise will have an impact on construction planning, mitigation measures, environmental impact and commercial development.

- An improved knowledge will facilitate impact assessments at the planning stage, and help to develop strategies for minimising environmental impact.
- The development of effective mitigation measures such as acoustic baffles - will be aided by an understanding of the noise generation process.
- An improved understanding and mitigation measures will enable the environmental effects to be minimised and help to prevent environmental concerns delaying construction.
- An improved understanding will aid the construction industry as the world market in this area grows.



Collaboration

This research is part of an ongoing collaboration with the National Physical Laboratory (NPL) and the Department of Electronic and Electrical Engineering at the University of Loughborough. They have already made measurements of piling noise in situ. Avenues for funding research in the area of anthropogenic noise are being jointly pursued.

Victor Humphrey, Fluid Dynamics and Acoustics Group, ISVR. (vh@isvr.soton.ac.uk)

Exploring Beneath an Antarctic Ice Shelf with the Autosub3 AUV

S McPhail



Sustained Observations in the Atlantic and Southern Oceans

Dr D Smythe-Wright



Mapping and Understanding the External Engagement of the University of Southampton in the MARITIME Sector

Dr R Comunian



(c) Ian Britton - FreeFoto.con

Serpent Project - Science and Industry in Partnership

Dr B Bett



National Marine Facilities Sea Systems - An overview

A Thorn



To deliver our mission, we provide three key services:

Sea Systems operates under the following principles:

embarked science capability.

integrated strategic resource plan.

and

The multi-disciplinary Royal Research Ships Discoverv and James Cook

We operate specialised science platforms; with an

We deliver a service which is shared by the marine

technical components and which is underpinned by an

National Oceanography Centre, Southampton

ASITY OF SOUTHARTON AND

The National Marine Equipment Pool (NMEP), comprising about £20M worth of equipment ranging from day grabs to complex state-of-the art underwater vehicles.

A team of approximately fifty marine technicians, providing specialist support to research cruises on a wide range of international and British Antarctic Survey (BAS) Systems' own research ships.



Scientific Engineering provides foundation engineering services and provision of technical staff to support scientific equipment onboard.

The group is organised in four sections ensuring a full technical service is provided

Sensors and Moorings - Extensive experience working with a broad range of equipment, including vertical profiling systems, towed and undulating vehicles, moored instruments and mooring technologies

Deep Platforms - Comprising Sea Systems specialist deep-water vehicles, the AUV Autosub3, the ROV Isis, an deep towed platforms TOBI, BRIDGET and SHRIMP

Portable Systems - Responsible for facilities such as coring, trawling and seismic systems as well as general laboratory equipment such

as fume hoods and gas generators, specialised container laboratories for clean chemistry and radio nuclide work

Ship Systems - manages all engineering activities connected with equipment permanently fitted to the Sea Systems managed vessels including computer networks and a sophisticated acoustic suite

The Research Ships team are responsible for the safe and effective operation of the Royal Research Ships Discovery and James Cook including operational and logistical arrangements for people joining vessels, diplomatic clearances, accommodation, liaising with ships agents and ensuring compliance with the International Ship Management code. The group is also responsible for ships engineering looking after propulsion and power generation, ship fitted winches and handling systems as well as managing refits and recertifications.

The Sea Systems group is also responsible for maintaining the National Marine Equipment Pool (NMEP) on behalf of NERC. The NMEP consists of a wide range of equipment which is primarily used to support the NERC Marine Facilities Programme.

The operation is underpinned by Support Services, providing bespoke data systems for marine planning and equipment tracking as well as logistics services who ensure the supply and transportation of equipment worldwide.

National Oceanography Centre, Southampton European Way, Southampton SO14 3ZH, UK Tel: 023 8059 6666 www.nocs.ac.uk

NATURAL ENVIRONMENT **RESEARCH COUNCIL**
Dr B Bett



Geographic Information Systems (GIS) for the Marine and Coastal Zone

C Hill

CE₂₅



C Hill

Southampton GeoData Institute Environment Marine Environmental Data Management **Key Impacts** Marine and coastal data management Managing the marine environment is a complex Supports operational management of the issue, with mineral extraction, fishing, energy, coastal zone, for flood and erosion risk navigation, conservation and recreation often management. competing within increasingly busy sea areas. Real-time data access, for hazard The Government has recognised, through the warning and mitigation. Marine Bill, the need for an effective planning process - the Marine Plan - and is currently Support research using high quality, developing the approaches to deliver spatial accessible environmental data. planning for the marine and coastal zone. Advancing information management and GeoData Institute, the University's knowledge exchange for the marine environmental assessment, data and information community. consultancy, is been helping to manage the marine information from a number of domains. Support to marine spatial planning, and integrated coastal zone management. Using Open Source software and integrating spatial data and metadata the Institute is Leading edge research into data providing public access to a wide range and large management and semantic query design. volumes of environmental information. Key applications include: Marine Aggregate Levy Sustainability Fund (mALSF) GIS www.marinealsf.org COWRIE Collaborative Offshore Wind Research into the Environment www.data.offshorewind.co.uk Channel Coast Observatory – real-time metocean and survey data for the South Coast. Software development for the marine Channel Coastal Ob Channelcoast.org.ul for more information please contact: GeoData Institute Tel: +44 (0)23 8059 2719 Email: geodata@soton.ac.uk, Web: www.geodata.soton.ac.uk

Minimising the Propulsive Power Consumption of a Fleet of AUVs

Professor P Wilson

CE27



Using Ships of Opportunity to Study the Oceans

Dr D Hydes

Using Ships of Opportunity National Oceanography Centre, Southampton to Study the Oceans UNIVERSITY OF SOUTHAMPTON AND NATURAL ENVIRONMENT RESEARCH COUNCI Since 2002 NOCS has been using commercial ships as cost-effective sensor platforms for making sustained oceanographic Data are telemetered back to NOCS at regular intervals allowing near real time web displays. See:http://www.noc.soton.ac.uk/snoms/ http://www.noc.soton.ac.uk/ops/ferrybox_index.php http://www.noc.soton.ac.uk/Iso/isar measurements on both coastal and global scales. Robust and reliable systems have been developed that record sea surface temperature, salinity, chlorophyll-fluorescence and dissolved gasses such as oxygen and CO2. Jon Campbell, Underwater Systems Laboratory, NOCS M/V Pride of Bilbao NOCS Ferrybox system The fate of organic carbon in the sea Climate - ocean ecosystem interaction Highly resolved quantification of ecosystem metabolism surements of pCO throughout the world's ocean Dissolved oxygen anomal into 00 air the C02 | Bilb 30 60 90 130 150 180 210 340 370 300 330 380 Time (days in 2005) Since 2002, we have been measuring sea Funding from Swire Shipping (Hong ride of Bilbao surface temperature, salinity, chlorophyll-Kong) enabled the development and fluorescence, dissolved oxygen, continuing operation of a pCO₂ phytoplankton nutrients, algal pigments, system fitted to their vessel "Pacific pCO₂ and ocean acidity (pH). Celebes". The design is a world first Our research has explained 100-year-old in being robust and serviceable by salinity anomalies, the intensity of harmful the ship's crew. Data are algal blooms and winter nutrient variability, automatically linked to the data sets as well as quantifying rates of net ecosystem being compiled by the International metabolism and its regional variation (see Ocean Carbon Coordination Project plot above) (see map) Contact: Dr Boris Kelly-Gerreyn Contact: Dr David Hydes National Oceanography Centre, Southampton SWIR NATURAL European Way, Southampton SO14 3ZH, UK ENVIRONMENT Tel: 023 8059 6666 P&O Ferries **RESEARCH COUNCIL** www.nocs.ac.uk

Professor T Leighton



Energy and Resources

The ocean is an important source of food and other resources. Since well before recorded history, humans have used the sea as a source of food. While only 5% of the protein consumed by world populations comes from the sea, it is still an important contribution to the diet of millions of the world's inhabitants. The oceans and seas are repositories of vast natural resources other kinds. We derive: energy, fossil based (oil and gas) as well as from renewable sources (wind, waves, tides, thermal gradients and the sun). The oceans and sea also have many different mineral resources available for extraction, including silver, gold, copper, manganese, cobalt, and zinc. These raw materials are found in various forms on the sea floor, usually in higher concentrations than terrestrial mines.

Our interests range from understanding of the basic sciences influencing the search for such resources, the technology for managing and extracting them and the legal instruments for exploiting such resources.

Maritime Energy – Sustainable and Secure

Dr D Hudson

Southampton

Environment

Maritime Energy – sustainable and secure

Research

Cost-effective access to maritime energy resources is essential. The rapid development of offshore renewable energy systems in particular wind and to a lesser extent tidal current and wave energy are seen as one method of the UK meeting its climate change obligations. Likewise, the ongoing exploration and extraction of subsea oil and gas reserves will provide a vital component of energy security for many years.

The maritime environment presents many challenges notably due to extreme conditions arising from the very resources from which energy can be captured.



Anaconda in action showing pulse of fluid within tube capturing energy from wave system

Impact

Providing a sustainable, secure energy supply is essential. The maritime environment will be a vital component of the UK's energy future. Our work at Southampton seeks to resolve the technological barriers to cost effective energy generation

www.southampton.ac.uk



Winner of The Engineer energy sector innovation award the Southampton integrated generator is under development (TSI technology Ltd) to provide 10kW units for reliable river and tidal energy.

Example Projects

•The novel Anaconda pulsed internal wave energy device is utilising a combination of fundamental fluid dynamics, structural response and experimental testing.

•Bend twist coupled carbon composite tidal turbine blade provide a smart structure that maximises reliability, blade life and energy capture

•Estimates of UK generation go as high of 10% from tidal currents. To achieve such levels arrays of devices are required that are optimised to ensure the maximum available energy can be utilised without significant environmental impact.

•Economic viability of tidal energy or indeed wave or offshore wind is controlled by the robustness of the system when immersed in the ocean with its salty, corrosive environment.





Collaborations

A mix of large Energy providers and many SME provide funding for fundamental and applied research alongside EPSRC and TSB

Deep-sea Mineral Resources and Environmental Management

Dr D Billett

ER2

Environment and Resources

Southampton

Deep-sea mineral resources and environmental management

The United Nations International Seabed Authority (ISA) is responsible for managing mineral resources on the deep ocean seabed in areas beyond national jurisdiction. Minerals may occur in massive polymetallic sulphides on ocean ridges, cobalt rich ferromanganese crusts on seamounts and polymetallic nodules lying on abyssal sediments. Dr David Billett, Co-Chair of the Ocean Biogeochemistry and Ecosystems Group, NOCS, is a member of the UN ISA Legal and Technical Commission, charged with ensuring that deep-sea mineral resources are exploited within a robust environmental management plan.

Mining in the deep-sea will have significant local impacts. Large areas of seafloor will be disturbed leading to the complete removal of fauna. It is therefore essential to know how quickly areas will be recolonised and over what scales biodiversity needs to maintained to allow seabed communities to recover. This requires knowledge of how species are distributed in different habitats in the deep ocean, their life processes, such as reproduction and dispersal, and the major drivers of species change in the deep sea. The drivers include sea surface primary productivity which fuels the vast majority of species in the oceans, even in the deepest parts.

Research at NOCS is using molecular and experimental techniques to understand how widely, or not, species are distributed in the world ocean, how interconnected localised communities are, for instance on different seamounts, and how productivity leads to species change in space and time.



National Oceanography Centre, Southampton



International treaties are charged with deciding on how spatial planning of the ocean might allow the exploitation of resources and the conservation of biodiversity, including the creation of large Marine Protected Areas (MPAs). NOCS research is being used to decide how large the MPAs should be, what number, what shape and their configuration.

The work is contributing to decisions being taken at the UN International Seabed Authority, the UN Convention on Biological Diversity, the Oslo-Paris Convention for the Protection of the Marine Environment in the NE Atlantic (OSPAR) and the European Commission.



For further information: Dr David Billett Ocean Biogeochemistry and Ecosystems Group

National Oceanography Centre, Southampton

dsmb@noc.soton.ac.iuk



www.southampton.ac.uk

Sustainable Catalysis for Renewable Marine Energy

Dr R Raja





Vibrational Power Flow Analysis of Nonlinear Dynamic Systems and Applications

Dr Y Xiong



The Influence of Surface Waves on the Added Resistance of Merchant Ships

Dr D Hudson



Wave Making Drag Prediction for Improved Design of Marine Crafts

Dr M Tan



Professor S Turnock



Investigation of Numerical Methods for Achieving Energy Efficient Ships

Professor S Turnock



Investigation of Wall-Bounded Turbulence over Sparsely Distributed Roughness

Dr M Tan

ER9



www.southampton.ac.uk/smmi

Smart Materials and Structures with Hybrid Nonlinear Vibration Control for Marine Applications

Professor RA Shenoi



Using Synthetic Turbulence as an Inlet Condition for Large Eddy Simulations

Professor V Humphrey



Passive-Adaptive Composite Structures for Unsteady Fluid Loading

Dr S Boyd



Interactions of Fluid and Soft Bodied Structures with Applications to Wave Energy Device

Dr M Tan



Design and Development of Effective Nonlinear Energy Harvesters

Dr Y Xiong



Design and Development of Duct-Diffuser Augmented Propeller Low Head Hydro Turbines

Professor S Turnock



Adaptive Composite Blades for Horizontal Axis Tidal Turbines

Professor S Turnock



Marine energy resource

Tidal Turbine flow field effects

Horizontal axis tidal turbines operate in a very similar manner to wind turbines but are exposed to the strong tidal flows existing around the UK. highly This predictable resource could supply up to 10% of the UK's electricity demand. Arrays of turbines will eventually be installed.



Artist impression of a tidal turbine array



0.8m-diameter tidal turbine installed in a large circulating water channel

Characterising the flow field around tidal turbines will enable array design to be optimised. There are many environmental and device-specific parameters that will affect the flow field.



Variables affecting the flow field around tidal turbines

A comprehensive 3 year project has involved the design, construction and flow mapping around 1/20th scale tidal turbines in large European test facilities. Each flow map consists of several hundred individual points to enable quantification of the flow conditions and optimisation of turbine spacing.



Marine energy resource

Southampton

and the Environment

Wave and Tidal energy research

Introduction

Pioneering research on wave and tidal power is being conducted at the University of Southampton. The Sustainable Energy Research Group at the School of Civil Engineering and the Environment has collaborated with several industrial partners and the National Oceanography Centre to focus of a wide range of research areas.

Device performance and testing

Development work on the commercial Pelamis wave energy device was conducted at the University. Scale trials are in progress for the new Anaconda device to design power take off systems and quantify energy yield performance.



Pelamis offshore wave energy converter (left) and Artist's impression of the Anaconda wave energy converter (right) .

Extensive scale model tests have addressed issues such as tidal turbine blade design, cavitation and the flow field surround marine energy converters.



Cavitation occurring on a 2D tidal turbine blade section (left) and $1/20^{th}$ scale turbine (right)

www.southampton.ac.uk

Marine energy Resource Assessment

Measured data from the wave and tidal energy resource is gathered and used to validate numerical simulation tools.



Satellite altimetry traces indicating wave power (left) and tidal current magnitude and direction at Portland Bill (right).

Fluid dynamics

Experimental results from flume tests and in-house developed numerical tools are used to quantify the fluid flow around devices



Numerical simulation of a tidal energy farm (left), dual tidal turbine flow mapping experiment (right)



www.energy.soton.ac.uk

Marine energy resource

Southampton

and the Environment

Modelling large arrays of tidal turbines

Introduction

Individual tidal stream generator units are limited in capacity and in general cannot completely block a tidal stream. If tidal stream power is to make a significant contribution to the energy mix, multi-row arrays of tidal turbines will need to be built, so tools are required to investigate the possible effects of a large array on the flow.

Modelling tidal stream arrays

Physical models of tidal stream turbine arrays are difficult to produce due to scale. Numerical models tend to be divided into three types of increasing complexity:

1.Added roughness (boundary layer) models

- 2.Wake superposition models
- 3.Field models



Added roughness/boundary layer type model (top left) Wake superposition model (bottom left) Field model (right)

Strengths of different models

	Boundary layer model	Wake superposition model	Fieldmodel
Details of wake	×	×	~
Power output of such device	×	~	~
Effect of hepe	~	×	~
Optional spacing of generations	√?	~	√?
Corpetational	£	££	£££

www.southampton.ac.uk

Added roughness model

Based on the theory of rough-wall boundary layer flow over obstacle arrays, these models assume that the momentum balance in a large array reaches a spatially-averaged equilibrium



A general obstacle array

In order to make the model useful, assumptions need to be made about the flow profile below the obstacle height (hub height) and the friction with the ground as a proportion of the drag on the obstacles (turbines).

Application of new model

The added roughness model may be used within existing coastal models to simulate large arrays and their effect on the tidal regime.



Simulated flow speed change (m/s) from natural tidal flow state when added roughness is applied in a numerical model of Portland Bill

www.energy.soton.ac.uk

Marine energy resource

Southampton

School of Civil Engineering and the Environment

Wave and Tidal energy experimental studies

Introduction

Fundamental research on wave and tidal energy devices has been conducted at the University of Southampton covering a wide range of devices, hydrodynamic and physical parameters.

Horizontal axis tidal turbines

A range of scale turbines have been constructed to investigate power generation performance, cavitation, flow field characterisation and device interaction effects.



1/40th scale prototype (left), Fully instrumented 1/20thscale turbine (top right) and dual turbine arrangement (bottom right)

Tidal fences

Investigating the effects of rows of tidal turbines using porous media to simulate energy extraction.



www.southampton.ac.uk

Tidal flow acceleration

By creating a tapered sea bed foundation for a tidal turbine it is possible to increase the flow speed which will increase energy capture from a device.



Measured flow velocity approaching and flowing over a scale tapered turbine foundation.

OWEL

A 1/40th-scale model of the Offshore Wave Energy Limited device has been developed at the University. Waves enter the open-ended tapered duct and force air through a turbine. Experiments have quantified the power extraction over a range of wave conditions. Based on the results, device geometries have been optimised.



Wave travelling along the duct of the OWEL device (left) and the long wave flume facility used for testing (right).

www.energy.soton.ac.uk

62

Marine energy resource

Southampton

Wave and Tidal energy device development

Introduction

Pioneering research on wave and tidal energy devices has been conducted at the University of Southampton on a wide range of concepts and devices that are now nearing large scale, commercial production.

Anaconda

Waves passing over the anaconda causes pulses of water to move through a giant rubber tube. Energy is extracted from this 'Bulge wave'. Recent tests at a large European wave basin quantified the performance of a 1/30th scale model.



Artists impression (top left), experimental model (top right) and diagram of wave basin set up (bottom).

Industrial project partners



www.southampton.ac.uk

Pelamis

Development work on the commercial Pelamis wave energy device was conducted at the University. Mooring response was studied to assess structural

loads and survivability in heavy seas was assessed using scale models subjected to extreme waves.



Pelamis wave energy device

Pulse-tidal

The university has been conducting flume testing in conjunction with IT Power to assess the performance and cost benefit

of a foundation structure for the Pulse tidal shallow water oscillating hydrofoil device.



Pulse tidal Humber demonstrator

OWEL

Automated scale model studies of the OWEL wave energy device have been conducted at the University in a wave tank to quantify power production under varying conditions.



Model device in flume (left), Artist impression right)

www.energy.soton.ac.uk

High Voltage Subsea Cable Systems at the Tony Davies High Voltage Laboratory

Professor P Lewin

ER22

Southampton

High Voltage Subsea Cable Systems at the Tony Davies High Voltage Laboratory

Laboratory Overview

•The Laboratory was constructed on its current site in 1991 with funding from STC Submarine Cable Systems

We undertake a range of Research, Testing and Consultancy work across a variety of HV Systems
Seven academic staff, possessing a wide range of high voltage expertise, are based in the laboratory
Alongside our high voltage facilities we have a fully equipped HV workshop



Research & Development

 Substantial breadth of research in cable systems, from blue sky to end application ·Significant work in the development and understanding of novel dielectric materials for both ac and dc application •Use of novel techniques in cable system condition monitoring to make better use of online data Longstanding work in operational modelling and standards development in areas such as current rating •We have a strong track record of working with industrial partners from manufacturers to transmission utilities



Cable System Testing

•We regularly test high voltage products on behalf of UK/EU based manufacturers

A wide range of tests can be performed on cable systems (both land and submarine), including withstand tests, impulse voltage tests (lightning and switching) and partial discharge tests
Tests on cable accessories are also offered,

including x-ray analysis to verify the integrity of polymeric cable joints.

•Experience in testing distribution, submarine fibre optic and neutrally buoyant cable systems and accessories such as joints and wet connectors



Consultancy & Forensics

Consultancy has always been a core element of our business, with staff involved in an array of projects both within the UK and overseas
We regularly draw upon our analytical facilities to assist clients in forensic examinations, either for quality control or failure analysis purposes

•Work carried out in a range of environments from laboratory to cable ships to cable tunnels









www.highvoltage.soton.ac.uk

Contact: Prof Paul Lewin Faculty of Physical and Applied Science pll@ecs.soton.ac.uk 02380 593586



Structural Analysis and Loads for a Modular Nuclear Merchant Ship

Professor RA Shenoi



Professor P Lewin





Gyroscopic Energy Harvesting

N Townsend



Power Flow Active Control of Aeroelastic Flutter for a Nonlinear Airfoil with Flap

Dr Y Xiong

ER₂₆



Low Carbon Ship Design

Dr D Hudson

Southampton Trade / Environment

Low Carbon Ship Design

Research purpose

Shipping represents the most efficient means to transport raw materials and manufactured goods from both a financial and environmental perspective. The CO2 emitted per tonne.km for shipping is lower than for any other mode of transport.

Sheer volume of trade means, however, that global shipping accounts for 1.12 billion tonnes of CO2 emissions per annum, equivalent to ~3% of global emissions and surpassing the emissions of all but 5 industrialised countries.

There is thus an urgent need to reduce the greenhouse gas emissions of the industry.



Collaborations

Lloyds Register Hart, Fenton and Co. Ltd. Prof. R. A. Shenoi Dr. S.R. Turnock Dr. D.A. Hudson Prof. A. F. Molland

Research description

Several research projects aim to reduce the greenhouse gas emissions of the shipping industry through improvements in ship design.

• Development of a quantified method of relating improvements in the efficiency of specific ship design features directly to reductions in CO2 emissions.

• Reduction of the aerodynamic drag of container ships using wind tunnel experiments to investigate cost-effective means of drag reduction – including container stacking arrangements and superstructure shape.

• Performance prediction for auxiliary kite propulsion of merchant shipping, using theoretical and experimental methods to determine potential CO2 emissions reductions for realistic shipping routes.

• Investigation of viable alternatives to the diesel engine for propulsion - a case study designing an environmentally sustainable vessel for Lundy Island.



with a full-scale site propulsion system.

www.southampton.ac.uk

Society and Government

By 2020, it is predicted that more than four billion people - or around 75 per cent of the global population - are expected to live within the world's coastal zones. The study of people and their welfare is critical to the welfare of our society. Maritime connections between individuals and societies have always been crucial to global trade, governmental networks and cultural and technological innovations. Empires and systems of commerce have been consolidated; traditions of social exchanges are continued; and new forms of communications are still emerging from these maritime connections. Our interests and expertise in this domain includes the evolution of port cities, the planning of governance and planning in coastal regions owing to climate change patterns, and technological innovations in ensuring the safety of people, tourism and leisure activities. **Dr G Earl**


The Parkes Institute

for the study of Jewish/non-Jewish relations

Professor J Schlör

Southampton

JEWISH MARITIME HISTORY

The Rev. Dr James Parkes (1894-1981) formally created The Parkes Library in 1961 with the aim of providing: a centre for research by non-Jewish and Jewish scholars and students... into the whole field of relations between Judaism and other religions. James Parkes was an extraordinary person; a volatile non-conformist, a creative force and a person who confronted antisemitism head-on. He demanded a world in which it was safe to be a Jew. The Parkes Institute is a community of scholars, curators, librarians, students, Friends of Parkes and activists, whose work is based around the rich resource of the library and archive. Through our research, publications, teaching and conservation work we provide a world-class centre for studies of Jewish/non-Jewish relations throughout the ages; the experience of minorities and outsiders and the examination of the power of prejudice from antiquity to the contemporary world.

Transmigrancy From the late 19th century, Southampton rivalled Liverpool as the main centre of transmigrancy in Britain. It was big business for shipping companies, railway companies and the ports themselves. Tens of thousands of immigrants passed through, staying up to two weeks before continuing their journeys and would have been a common sight in Southampton before 1914. Many were E. European Jews. From Southampton they moved on - North America, South America and South Africa amongst other destinations: There were many such lews on brand the Titapic destinations. There were many such Jews on board the Titanic never to make it to the 'golden medina' of America.

Seafaring Jews

Seafaring Jews A "mock trial", organized in 1938 by members of the German-speaking Jewish Community in Palestine, discussed the 'lack of seafaring' among the Jews in Palestine – at the same time the city of TeI-Aviv was creating its own port. The Parkes Institute is developing a new project on Jewish seafaring which starts with a one day conference on 26 October 2009.

Port Jews

The Parkes AHRC Port Jews research project (2001-2005) which identified the "Port Jew" (in contrast to the "Court Jew" and their role in history) as a distinctive character who was active and self-conscious in a broad network of economic and cultural relations across Europe; studied cosmopolitan port cities and their Jewish communities in Early Modern and Modern History. The Parkes Institute is opening this research to a transnational perspective to study Jewish communities in Mumbai, Shanghai, Cape Town and Buenos Aires

The port of Tel Aviv (photo: J. Schlör)

Atlantic Hotel, in Albert Road Southampton c. 1900 (now converted into apartments) where transmigrants were housed while awaiting passage





IMPACT Publications: David Csearani (ed.), Port Jews: Jewish Comm nities in Cosmophitza Maritime Trading Centres, 1550-1950 (2002), David Cesarani and Gemma Romain (eds), Jews in Port Cities, 1650s to the Present (2006), Tony Kushner, David Cesarani and Milton Shain (eds), Place and Displacement in Jewish History and Memory (2009), Tony Kushner, Anglo-Jewry since 1066: Place, Locality and Memory (2009), Tony Kushner, Anglo-Jewry since 1066: Place, Locality and Memory (2009), Tony Kushner, Anglo-Jewry since 1066: Place, Locality and Memory (2009), Tony Kushner, Anglo-Jewry since 1066: Place, Locality and Memory (2009), Tony Kushner, Anglo-Jewry Since 1066: Place, Locality and Memory (2009), Tony Kushner, Anglo-Jewry Since 1066: Place, Locality and Memory (2009), Tony Kushner, Anglo-Jewry Since 1067; Place 1000; Place 100 (2010 forthcoming)

Joachim Schlör is working with Ingo Haar in Vienna, Leo Lucassen in Leiden and Carl Henrik Carlsson in Uppsala on a joint research project "Migration and Integration". The comparative study analyses "Jewish Spaces" in port cities such as Amsterdam, Antwerp, Oslo, London, and Southampton.

The Parkes Institute has carried out extensive dialogue at a public level with regards to diversity, tolerance and intolerance all of which have been played out on a spectacular level in maritime settings.

Events: Conference: "Jewish Families and Migration", January 2009, Cape Town; in which maritime themes were strongly represented. From this another international gathering will be held in 2011 in conjunction with local heritage bodies in the city of Cape Town, on the concept of the "archive" and migration with maritime themes being of central significance

One day International Jewish Maritime Conference 26 October 2009 at NOC- with: Rebecca Wolpe, (Ben Gurion University) on "Jerusalem: Seafaring Narratives in Jewish Literature".and Naor Ben Yehoyada, (Harvard), "Jaffa Fishermen and the Zionist Project" among the speakers

www.southampton.ac.uk

SG₂

Dr S Jones

Southampton

Humanities: Communities

The study of people is central to research in the Humanities. Maritime connections between individuals and societies have always been crucial to global trade, governmental networks, and cultural and technological innovations. Empires and systems of commerce have been consolidated; traditions of social exchange are continued; and new forms of communication are still emerging from these maritime connections. By highlighting these issues, research in the humanities demonstrates that it is impossible to understand economies, politics and cultures without an understanding of the development of communities across oceans.

Networks

Maritime global networks were essential to the expansion of trade, colonisation and empires in the period after the famous 'voyages of discovery' of the fifteenth century. They made possible new trans-oceanic communities, linking people on the shores and hinterlands of distant continents. Nowhere was this more apparent than in the 'Atlantic world', a geographical region that developed as a result of new connections of commerce and colonisation around the rim of the Atlantic Ocean.

Sugar and slavery were of huge importance to the British Atlantic world. Ships left Liverpool, London and Bristol, to trade for enslaved people along the coast of West Africa before shipping them to work on plantations in the Americas and returning home laden with American staple products, such as sugar, rum, tobacco and rice. This relied on Atlantic communities of merchants, entrepreneurs, colonists and investors, who created new ways of extending credit, managing risk and extracting profit from the mass movement of people and goods. It also required close communication, and British slaveholders in the colonies kept in constant touch with merchants, friends and family 'at home'. Many of them also retired to the British Isles once they had made their fortunes, managing their colonial plantations from the other side of the Atlantic and further strengthening the far-flung links that bound Britons into global communities.

Colleagues in history and other humanities disciplines at Southampton research these Alantic and other maritime global networks. Their work has been funded by grants from sources such as the AHRC and the British Academy, and their publications have addressed themes such as cultural identities, migration, slaveholding, refugees and port cities. They have also developed links with the National Maritime Museum, helping to create a new 'Atlantic Worlds' gallery.



ZBA1588: Attack and Capture of the rebels' positions near Montego Bay by boats from HMS Blanche (Reoro ID: F7405 @ National Maritime Museum)

Coasts

Located in antiquity at boundaries between 'the known' and 'the unknown worlds', maritime communities were the interface between emerging networks of people. Maritime archaeology attempts to access, understand, and explore the role of these communities in maritime contact, and ultimately discover the connection they have with people today.



Geological and Geophysical work in the Geological and Geophysical work in the Solent Estuary region has enabled the mapping of submerged landscapes that were inundated due to Holocene sea-level rise. This work addresses the impact of environmental change on people from the Mesolithic through to present day. The Chumash 'maritime' communities of south central California faced similar challenges with changing hydrological conditions throughout the later Holocene. Research funded by the University of Southampton, UCLAN and UCLA has revealed how relationships between interior highland zone, lake dwellers and coastal communities shifted with a move to a more arid climate during the medieval epoch. In both the Solent and South Central California, changes in hydrological regimes altered how people interpreted the world around them, on both functional and spiritual levels.

In more recent history, 'port cities' have been the point of arrival and departure for countless millions of migrants. The experiences of these migrants raise a number of important questions. For example, how do these groups interact with 'host' communities and with what consequences? In what ways is the host community – in this context, the port city – shaped by migrants? Members of the Parkes Institute for the study of Jewish'non-Jewish relations are researching the life experiences of 'port Jews', while other scholars in the School of Humanities are asking similar questions in relation to Asian and African diasporas.

Ships

Communities and their relationship with the sea, the technology of their boats, and the choices they make in the selection of the vessels they construct, is the focus of ethnoarchaeological work conducted in the Indian sub-continent, supported by the British Academy funded Society for South Asian Studies. Maritime ethnography examines the boats in a modern day context, acquiring an insight into the practice of maritime communities of the past.



ipboard experiments in a sixteenth-century Italian woodcut., proving the curvature of the s per Pomptili Azalii Placentini (Venice: Scoto, 1544) fol. 80r. © The British Library Board. and a British Library 592 17

Complementing work on the significance and influence of boat technologies, research in English is focused on how the maritime connections experienced by navigators were 'translated' by writers of texts and cartographers between the twelfth and the fifteenth-centuries. How does a practical understanding of the Ocean translate into bookish and cartographic knowledge? Measurement was by time travelled more often than by units of distance; space was marked out by what one does to get to it, rather than according to geometry. Communities of geographers and cartographers wrestled with whether and how the space of communities of travellers, explorers and navigators should be incorporated into the image of the world.

Other work in the School of Humanities is directed towards different questions of legitimacy, and different types of community forged aboard boats. The AHRC funded project on *The Indian Ocean: narratives in literature and law supports research* into recent and historical narratives of piracy. Current stories of Somali pirates (by others and themselves, as communities of criminals and herces, as nation builders and nation breakers) have both continued and altered stories of pirate communities begun in the late 17th century by travellers, journalists, lawyers, and writers of fiction.

Stephanie Jones, 'Colonial to postcolonial ethics: Indian Ocean "belongers ", 1668-2008', Interventions, 11.2 (2009),1-23. A Historical Companion to Postcolonial Literatures in Continental Europe and its Empires, eds. Prem Poddar, Lars Jensen and Rajeev S. Patke (Edinburgh: Edinburgh

University Press, 2009). Boats of South Asia, eds. Sean McGrail, Lucy Blue, Eric Kentley and Colin Palmer (London: Routledge, 2003).

Christer Petley Slaveholders in Jamaica: Colonial Society and Culture during the Era of Abolition (London: Pickering and Chatto, 2009).

Children reliev Slavenolde's in Jamaica. Colonial Society and Calciere during the Era of Abolition (London: Flokening and Challo, 2003).

Christer Petley "Home" and "This Country": Britishness and Creole Identity in the Letters of a Transatlantic Slaveholder', Atlantic Studies 6:1 (2009), 43-61. Fraser Sturt 'Fishing for meaning: lived space and the early Neolithic of Orkney', in Set in Stone: new approaches to Neolithic monuments in Scotland, eds. V. Cummings and A. Pannett (Oxford: Oxbow, 2005), 68-80.

Collaborations our partners include: AHRC (Arts and Humanities Research Council), National Maritime Museum, Open University, Southampton Archaeology Museum, UCLAN, UCLA, University of Cambridge, University of Liverpool.

Outputs

Dr C Petley

Southampton

Humanities: Trade

Oceans are important areas of contest, trade, and war. They are also cultural spaces in which identities are shaped and re-shaped, sometimes willingly but sometimes, as in the case of transatlantic slavery, through force and coercion. Ships were the platforms that facilitated maritime trade, and harbours the interface that linked different cultures. Since prehistory, these and other technologies have linked people in ways that have facilitated exchange, commerce and trade. Researchers in the humanities are interested in all of these themes as well as the human stories of those traders, workers, and migrants who moved across and within the ocean world.

Human Voices

One of the issues that researchers in the humanities focus on is the lived experience of those who were involved in trade, whether as traders, pirates, migrants or enslaved workers. The Arts and Humanities Research Council (AHRC) funded project on The Indian Ocean: Narratives in Literature and Law is designed to interrogate how the Ocean has been presented in various popular and institutional, creative and regulatory 'stories' over the past five hundred years. Other researchers in Humanities are looking in detail at the transatlantic slave trade. We are also interested in areas of contest – for example, how abolitionist and pro-slavery advocates 'imagined' slavery – and the representation of colonial elites, both in the Caribbean and North America.



Swahili Man and Gujarati Woman, Zanzibar, circa 1910, Royal Commonwealth Society Collection, Cambridge University Library. The photo is emblematic of the busy Indian-Ocean trading connections between East Africa and the Indian subcontinent, which went on alongside cultural exchange, travel and migration.

Trade and Technology

Ships are floating pieces of technologies as well as social worlds, and researchers in the humanities focus on these interconnected elements of ocean travel. The study of shipwrecks contributes towards our understanding of maritime trade. At the University of Southampton, the Centre for Maritime Archaeology explores the construction of ships by investigating shipwrecks as well as examining the nature of their cargoes. Research beneath the icy waters of the Baltic and in the depths of the Mediterranean has revealed well preserved ships still laden with the goods they set sail with centuries ago, providing previously unseen insight into historical trade patterns between parts of Europe, North Africa and the world beyond. As well as researching ships, colleagues in the humanities are interested in port cites, another collection of sites in which the technologies of trade intersect with rich and varied social and cultural encounters created by ocean travel and commerce. At the University of Southampton, the Port Networks Project engages colleagues working on Roman ports throughout the Mediterranean in order to further understand the nature of Roman trade, and the Portus Project funded by the AHRC lies at the centre of this work. Meanwhile colleagues in History and in the Parkes Institute have furthered our understanding of Jewish port communities and of the many ways in which modern Britain has been forged through its relationship with the sea, including the impact and legacies of global trade and a maritime empire.

Some contacts

Prof. Jon Adams (Archaeology), Dr Lucy Blue (Archaeology), Dr Stephanie Jones (English), Dr Marianne O'Doherty (English), Prof. Tony Kushner (History and Parkes), Prof. John Oldfield (History), Dr Christer Petley (History)

For contact details and more information about the many colleagues working on maritime-related projects in Humanities, please visit our website at www.southampton.ac.uk/humanities

www.southampton.ac.uk

Centre for Maritime Archaeology - Palaeolandscapes and Environmental Change

Dr L Blue



Centre for Maritime Archaeology - Reconstructing Wrecks -Technology, Innovation and Social Change





Centre for Maritime Archaeology - Development of Ports and Harbours



Centre for Maritime Archaeology - Oceans and Emerging Identities





Centre for Maritime Archaeology - Maritime Ethnography -Understanding the Past through the Present

Dr L Blue



Centre for Maritime Archaeology - Heritage Management and Outreach



Professor D Sear



Revealing the Lost City of Dunwich - The Dunwich 2008 Project

Professor D Sear



The 2008 Underwater Survey

Professor D Sear



Professor D Sear



Dr D Hudson

SG15

Southampton

Communities

Maritime Sport and Leisure

Research Purpose

Achieving top performance in highly competitive maritime sports such as sailing, rowing or canoeing requires the synthesis of the best athlete tailored equipment, knowledge of the most effective strategies and tactics, a suitable training regime and the desire to win. Conventional approaches to performance enhancement have partitioned developments or indeed ignored specific aspects all together. As the human factor is integral to the performance of marine sport or related leisure activities a whole engineering systems approach is required that can include that interaction.



Impact

The engineering challenges in events such as the America's Cup, round the world yacht races are a large driver in improving performance of computational and experimental fluid dynamic analysis tools, real time instrumentation systems and smart materials fro the maritime sector. The many thousands of people who enjoy watersports and the millions who will watch Olympic events are influenced by the innovations in maritime technology led by many Ship Science graduates.

www.southampton.ac.uk



Research Description

Yachts and small craft design encompasses all aspects of Naval Architecture from high performance materials for sails to the latest in optical fibre sensors embedded in the mast. An area of expanding interest is in exactly how sailors or rowers make tactical and strategic choices. Success or failure can often be dictated by split-second decisions. Simulation tools have been developed that

(1)capture the complexity of the whole physical system and enable human-in-the-loop control to improve training or

(2)development of 'robotic' craft that capture the behaviour of real sailors so that the design of a new boat can be assessed under realistic conditions



Collaborations TNZ, Luna Rosa, Alinghi, UK Sport, British Marine Federation, and many other SME Remembering the Titanic in 2012: 'City Branding', Civic Identity and Local Economic Development

Professor S Pinch

SG16

Southampton

Port Cities

Remembering the Titanic in 2012: 'City Branding', Civic Identity and Local Economic Development

Description of the research

The sinking of the Titanic acts as a potent symbol that has persisted well beyond the particular event in 1912. Titanic can be said to epitomize disaster and catastrophe, serve as a warning to blindly trusting technology, symbolize the active role of nature in the form of the (Atlantic) ocean, and necessarily bring up feelings of nostalgia, perhaps as a result of its periodic retelling as a movie. For all these reasons, the Titanic continues to fascinate and enthral academics and the public alike.

This research project will use the forthcoming 100th anniversary of the sinking of the Titanic in April 2012 to examine how this event is memorialized in the five cities most touched by the disaster: Belfast, Halifax, Liverpool, New York City and Southampton. The Titanic was conceived and financed in Liverpool, built in Belfast, and officially set sail from Southampton. The majority of victims of the Titanic were buried in Halifax (Canada), and its ultimate destination was New York City. We are interested in examining the meanings attached to Titanic memorials in each of these cities.

The project will also investigate how the processes of Titanic memorialisation are integrated into strategies for economic development and the extent to which these formal promotional activities by civic authorities accord with local understandings of this powerful event. We will use a variety of methods to investigate these research interests, including archival research into the memorials themselves, setting the memorials into historical and political context, interviewing important image makers on their strategies for using the Titanic for city development, and speaking to tourists and local residents to understand how they view the Titanic legacy in terms of their attachment to their locality.

Impact of the research

The results of this research will help municipal decision-makers, citizens and academics interested in the place-memory relationship better understand the links between the Titanic legacy and their city image. More specifically, we plan to offer the following real-world benefits:

- * knowledge of the different ways cities are memorializing the sinking of the Titanic;
- * evaluation of the economic success of different city-based strategies, including links between the Titanic and city-imaging/branding;
- * understanding the interpretations of the Titanic memorialization made by local citizens
- * and insights into the Titanic 'tourist experience' in different cities.

Collaborations

We are seeking to collaborate with a variety of city officials and cultural leaders from across the five Titanic Cities. These will include interviewing city officials such as the cultural committee, town/urban planning and development, and *Titanic* Cities contact person, complemented by members of the 'growth coalition': politicians, local media, tourist boards, museums, and heritage associations

Researchers

Geoffrey DeVerteuil (G.P.DeVerteuil@soton.ac.uk)

Steven Pinch (S.P.Pinch@soton.ac.uk)

School of Geography, University of Southampton, Southampton, SO17 1BJ





www.southampton.ac.uk

S Hall



Southampton

Sustainable mudflats and saltmarshes

Research context

Intertidal mudflats and saltmarshes comprise the sedimentary shores of estuaries and other sheltered areas in temperate and high latitude regions (Figure 1). They are increasingly valued for their biodiversity and their role in sustainable coastal erosion and flood defence.



 Figure 1:
 Mudflats and saltmarshes in Yarmouth

 Estuary, Isle of Wight, UK

However, these habitats and their tropical equivalent, mangroves, are globally in decline. This is predominantly attributed to land claim for agriculture, industry and waste disposal; vegetation die-back; and sea-level rise. This puts their services and the species that depend on them at increasing risk.

Research description

This research aims to design and validate a systemic-level decision-support system (DSS) to facilitate concerted actions to better mitigate and manage intertidal mudflat and saltmarsh degradation and loss.



Figure 2: Solent coastline (Cope et al., 2008) The Solent region, where mudflat and saltmarsh loss presents a significant challenge to decision makers, will be used as a case study. The objectives are: to ascertain the context which frames the decision-making situation through desk studies and in-depth interviews; to design a DSS based on the learning from the above; and to validate the DSS via action research.

Research impact

The outcomes of this research will be an improved understanding of the concerted actions to mitigate and manage mudflat and saltmarsh degradation and loss in the Solent region; a better understanding of the historical, environmental, socio-economic, legislative and political factors that influence concerted actions to realize sustainable mudflats and saltmarshes; and a DSS for use in similar future complex decision-making situations across the UK.

www.southampton.ac.uk

Natalie Foster, PhD student Faculty of Engineering and the Environment natalie.foster@soton.ac.uk

S Hall



Design of High Speed Craft from a Human Factors Perspective

Dr D Taunton

SG20

Southampton

Communities

Design of High Speed Craft from a Human Factors Perspective

Research description

Several inter-linked research programmes aimed at determining the effect of hull design and operation on the performance of the crew of high speed craft, such as the rigid inflatable boats used by the RNLI and interceptor craft used by the MOD.

Full-scale measurements onboard RNLI rigid inflatables and model experiments in towing tanks were conducted. These results were used to develop novel design methods allowing boats to be designed for improved coxswain and crew, or passenger, performance.



Research impact

Design guidelines produced for RNLI for rigid inflatable lifeboats.

New design methods incorporating human responses can be used to improve operator performance.

Lessons learnt:

 Motions and accelerations are so severe that the EU limit for whole body vibration is normally exceeded in a matter of minutes.
 Vibration reducing technology, such as suspension seating, has little effect on the whole body vibration limit and thus work continues on crew workload assessment, training and operator guidance as a means to improve performance.

www.southampton.ac.uk



Collaborations

Royal National Lifeboat Institution (RNLI) Institute of Sound and Vibration Research University of Chichester Prof. R.A. Shenoi Prof. P.A. Wilson Dr. D.A. Hudson Dr. D.J. Taunton



National Marine Coordination Office

S Hall

SG21



www.southampton.ac.uk/smmi

Professor H Staniland

Southampton Institute of Maritime Law

Established in 1982, the Institute of Maritime Law is a leading world centre for teaching, research and consultancy in maritime law.

The Institute seeks to be a focal point for maritime law research, and to form a bridge between academics and practitioners.



T: +44 (0)23 8059 3862

W: www.southampton.ac.uk/iml

E: <u>A.Rogers-Ballanger@soton.ac.uk</u>

www.southampton.ac.uk/iml

Centre for Maritime Archaeology - Research Services for Industry



Professor D Sear



Professor D Sear



Effects of Vibration and Low-Frequency Motions on Passengers and Crew

Professor M Griffin



Dr D Nikolić



Trade and Transport

With a global value worth £2 trillion, the marine market continues to grow across continents. In the EU, 90% of external trade and 40% of internal trade is seaborne; 1200 ports cater for 3.5b tonnes of cargo and 350 million passengers. UK 's maritime sector is the second largest in Europe; with contribution to the world maritime economy at about 3.1% the UK is placed in the top six, together with USA, China, Japan, India and Germany. Our work encompasses technological aspects, working towards safe shipping and ship designs, legal instruments governing commercial and seabed management, logistics and supply chain management and the underlying impact of the maritime trade driven economics on the nation states ' welfare.

Delphin2: An Over Actuated Autonomous Underwater Vehicle for Manoeuvring Research

Dr D Taunton



Nature in Manoeuvrable Bio-Locomotive Engineering (NIMBLE)

Dr J Blake



Swimming Data Capture

Professor S Turnock



Professor P Temarel



Nonlinear Hydrodynamic Analysis of Floating Structures Subject to Ocean Environments

Dr Z Chen



Numerical Investigation into Potential Flow Around High-Speed Hydrofoil Assisted Craft

Professor G Hearn



Numerical Investigations on Fluid-Structure Interactions Using Particle Based Methods for Marine Applications

Dr M Tan

TT₇



Hydroelastic Inflatable Boats: A Possible Design Methodology.

Professor P Wilson



Damage Assessment Tool for Marine Structures

A Sobey


Strength Assessment of Damaged Steel Ship Structures

Professor RA Shenoi



Integrated Design for Production to Ensure Sustainability in Marine Transportation

Dr J Blake





Professor RA Shenoi



Infra-Red Technique for Damage Tolerant Sandwich Structures

Professor J Barton



Analysis of Adhesively-bonded Composite Joints

Dr S Boyd





Pulse Phase Thermography and its Application to Defects in Adhesively Bonded Joints

Professor J Barton



Infrared Sensing for Materials Characterisation and Damage Assessment

Professor J Barton



Full-Field Optical Techniques for High Strain Rate Behaviour Investigation on Glass Fibre Reinforced Polymers

Professor J Barton



The Use of Optical Techniques to Assess the Performance of Composite Materials under High Velocity Deformations

Professor J Barton



Synchronised IRT and DIC capture to Measure the Strain Rate Dependency of Fibre Reinforced Composites

Professor J Barton



Permeability and Cure Measurements in the Vacuum Assisted Resin Infusion Process for Validation of PAM-RTM Simulation

Dr S Boyd



Thermal Degradation of Polymeric Foam Cored Sandwich Structures

Professor J Barton



Hygrothernal Ageing and the Implications on Adopting Sustainable Composite Materials for Structural Marine Applications

Dr J Blake





Modelling Characterisation and Development of New Magnetorheological Materials with Enhanced Vibration Control Performance

Dr Y Xiong



Professor G Hearn



An Improved Concurrent Engineering Framework through Incorporation of Management Methodologies

Professor D Macbeth



Professor RA Shenoi

Communities

Southampton

RNLI Advanced Technology Partnership

Maritime Engineering Sciences and Maritime Safety

Context

The purpose of this venture is to create an environment and culture for co-operative research and education within the RNLI and the University on maritime engineering subjects of common interest to the two institutions. The objectives are

to: (a) To conduct fundamental research in engineering disciplines pertinent to the design, manufacture and operation of lifeboats and associated engineering systems, where possible and desirable through collaborative endeavours with other organisations utilising leveraged funding from those sources (b) To apply such knowledge to the solution of potential and practical problems in the design and operation of lifeboats and associated engineering Systems; (c) To disseminate such knowledge and good practice to RNLI and UoS audiences and to the wider community outside; and (d) To facilitate technology transfer between RNLI and UoS and continuous professional development of staff in the two institutions



Example Projects

- Fatigue behaviour sandwich structures
- Hygrothermal ageing of sandwich tee joints
- Repair of sandwich plates and beams
- Principles underpinning of RIB design
- Life extension of composite structures and boats
- Behaviour of composite sandwich plates under fire



Impact

- The impact of this work has been four-fold:
- Fatigue design procedure for lifeboats
- Repair manual for the RNLI fleet
- Design manual for RIBs

Safety case format for lifeboats under extreme load events

www.southampton.ac.uk



Professor P Temarel



Dr M Tan

Southampton

Trade / Communities

Ship Hydrodynamics: Sloshing

Research purpose/impact

Natural gas has become an increasingly important source of primary energy for developed countries such as the UK and sea borne liquefied natural gas (LNG) is a vital component in the infrastructure for the national energy security. Because of increased demand and economies of scale, larger LNG ships and facilities are designed and built. Violent liquid motion known as sloshing in the LNG tanks due to external excitations can have significant effects on the safe operations of LNG carriers and storage tanks so it is critical to have deep understanding of sloshing and efficient modelling techniques.





Mode shape of a tankwater system (A)



Sloshing simulation using URANS CFD (C)

DSME Lloyds Register

Prof. P. Temarel Dr M. Tan Prof. S.R. Turnock Prof J.T. Xing Dr Y. P. Xiong Dr Y. Chen Dr B. Godderidge Dr Y.B. Lee

Roll RAO for barge-tank coupled motion (B, E)



Fluid motion in a chamfered tank (D)

Collaborations

due to sloshing

www.southampton.ac.uk

Email address: M.Tan@soton.ac.uk

Research description

Development of methodology and techniques for sloshing simulations in partially filled containers and prediction of sloshing impact with fluid structure interaction effect:

•(A) Application of a mixed finite element method for sloshing analysis with fluid-structure interactions: A variety of tank sloshing problems have been studied.

•(B) Coupling between ship motion and sloshing: A method for coupled ship motion with partially filled tanks is formulated based on potential flow theory. Added mass and motion RAOs are calculated.

•(C) A unsteady RANS model for nonlinear sloshing simulation: Modelling techniques are developed and validated utilising experimental data for high fidelity nonlinear sloshing simulations using URANS CFD.

•(D) Solution of low speed two-fluid flows occurring in liquid sloshing in an enclosed container: Free surface waves due to sloshing are captured and tank wall pressure time histories are obtained.

•(E) A rapid sloshing prediction model based on analytical approach: A faster than real time method is developed using nonlinear pendulum model to predict the sloshing occurrence and severity for LNG carriers in seaway under different conditions.



Damages to the containment system on an LNG ship

www.southampton.ac.uk/smmi

Sonar System Development

Professor V Humphrey

Southampto Sonar System Development 0.1 MPa 0.7 MPa 1.4 MPa Background With an increased awareness of the potential risks to maritime trade there is a need to develop and characterise improved sonar systems capable of detecting and identifying 10 P.P.P. unwanted objects in the coastal and harbour environments. These developments will also be of potential benefit in a range of other areas including the remote sensing of the 15 20 Frequency / kHz marine environment. Measured results for the reflection loss of a test panel at three values of hydrostatic pressure obtained in the NPL pressure vessel using a parametric array system Impact **Optical measurement** of the surface velocity of a circular 330 kHz transducer made with The research will aid the provision of improved systems and security measures for the protection of maritime trade and a scanning Laser Doppler Vibrometer. harbour security. The techniques and understanding can also increase the commercial advantage of UK industry by providing improved knowledge, measurement techniques and systems. 1/10 Research Research is undertaken to aid the development, improvement and characterisation of sonar systems in general. This includes studies of transducer design, material development, characterisation of sonar fields, high amplitude acoustic propagation and acoustic scattering from underwater structures and targets. In particular this Measured scattering from a target as a function of frequency and angle of incidence obtained on a trial at the NPL Wraysbury Facility. A parametric array was used to measure scattering over ranges 2-25 and research looks at: o The performance of transducers and transducer arrays using a mixture of Finite Element (FE) modelling and 65-85 kHz. analytical approaches;

Collaboration

Parts of this programme have been funded by the Osprey Consortium (led by QinetiQ), Dstl, DTIC and Industry.

The work on optical measurement of sonar fields is performed in close collaboration with the National Physical Laboratory.

The development of techniques for measuring the performance of sonar materials under ocean conditions using the NPL pressure vessel is being performed in collaboration with NPL, Dstl and QinetiQ.

Recent work on acoustic scattering has been funded by DTIC and has involved a consortium led by Ultra Electronics.

Victor Humphrey, Fluid Dynamics and Acoustics Group, ISVR. (vh@isvr.soton.ac.uk)

www.southampton.ac.uk

o The optical measurement of the acoustic fields of high

frequency transducers from near field measurements

under both linear and high amplitude (nonlinear)

o The measurement or transmission and reflection

properties of materials for use in sonar systems

o The assessment of composite anisotropic materials for

including the implementation of measurement

o The measurement and FE modelling of acoustic

scattering from man-made structures in order to identify measurement techniques that may be used to

techniques in the NPL pressure vessel

improve sonar system performance.

frequency underwater transducers; o The prediction of far field characteristics of high

propagation conditions;

use in sonar domes;

128 Maritime Research at the University of Southampton

Professor RA Shenoi

TT30

Southampton

Trade

Lightweight and high performance ships and boats

Research

An important factor in the increasingly competitive seaborne trade market is fuel efficient ships. Increasing energy efficiency of ships implies a reduction in the weight of the ships thus allowing them to carry more payload for the same fuel consumption or the same payload as in a heavier ship with reduced fuel consumption.

One way to achieve such weight savings is to use lightweight materials such as fibre reinforced polymer composite materials. The focus of the work in this area in Southampton has been to increase confidence in the design ability and safety of the ship structure under the extreme loads that the ships could be subjected to in hazardous sea conditions.



Impact

The fundamental research has resulted in improving industrial practice through practical guides:

Repair manual for the RNLI fleet of lifeboat hulls
Design manual for the use of composite materials for commercial ships

•Defence Standards (DEFSTAN) in the use of composite materials for ship construction •Safety case for fire in the design of boats

www.southampton.ac.uk

Scientific thrust

The scientific aims of the work in this regard are: •Better understanding of the strength and stability limits of structural configurations under monotonic, static loading

•Improved modelling ability to predict the long term durability and ageing phenomena in a marine environment

•Achieving enhanced integration of production and operational issues at the ship design stage through concurrent engineering.

Example Projects

• Static, fatigue and impact behaviour of single skin and sandwich tee joints.

•Ultimate strength of composite structures

•Reliability modelling and safety engineering of lightweight structures.

•Concurrent engineering and design-production engineering of boat structures.

•Life cycle analysis of improved structural materials and configurations.

•Thermo-mechanical behaviour of composite structures under combined fire and mechanical load conditions.

Collaborations

Collaborators and partners in this work have included Vosper Thornycroft, BAE Systems, RNLI, Lloyd's Register, QinetiQ, British Marine Federation, Shipbuilders and Shipepairers Association,

Sunseeker, Fairline, Princess Yachts, Sealine, Oyster Yachts.

Public funding for this work has come from EPSRC, DTI/TSB, MoD, EU

Lloyd's Register Educational Trust University Technology Centre

Professor RA Shenoi

TT31

Southampton Trade Lloyd's Register Educational Trust University **Technology** Centre Hydrodynamics, Hydroelasticity & the Mechanics of Composites Context Lloyd's Register (LR) is an independent risk management organisation. The Lloyd's Register Group works to improve its clients' quality, safety, environmental and business performance. Benn-like shi Founded in 1760 to examine merchant ships and 'classify' them according to their condition, today the organisation's expertise and activities extend **Example Projects** far wider than the shipping field. The objectives of the University Technology · Parametric roll of ships Centre or UTC, sponsored by the LR Educational Rogue waves and influence on ship loading Trust (LRET) are: (a) Support LR's constitutional objective of fostering research; (b) · Sloshing in tanks and effect on ship behaviour Encourage a general advance in technology in · Power flow and structural dynamics areas of interest to LR; (c) Promote closer working relationship with high quality academic · Reliability of composite structures institutions such as UoS; and (d) Provide opportunities for collaborative working and staff • Ultimate strength modelling of FRP plates development · Slamming and water impact loading · Remote processing and distributed computing · High speed vessels Impact The impact of this work has been four-fold: · Better methods for the design of ships and floating structures · Computer programs for ship loadings and responses • International collaboration with colleagues and industrialists in Singapore and Korea ·Public workshops where results from the research have been disseminated

www.southampton.ac.uk

Professor RA Shenoi

Southampton

MoD Centre of Excellence in Marine Structures

Mechanics and integrity assessment of damaged structures

Context

Trade

The Centre of Excellence represents a long term, strategic collaboration between MoD and Lloyd's Register on the one hand and the University of Southampton and University College London on the other.

The two main areas of study by researchers and students are analysis of loads on damaged ships and modelling techniques for damaged and aged structure.

The strategic aim of the project is to deliver a set of analysis processes and procedures that may be implemented to provide an Emergency Response Service to Warships .

The project is being in close collaboration with a number of UK based shipyards, design consultants and naval architectural companies.



Example Projects

Load determination in damaged ships

• Ultimate strength of aged and damaged ship structures

Collapse strength of orthotropic stiffened structures

• Computation models for coupled fluid structure modelling of damaged ships



Impact

The impact of this work, when completed, would be for safer ships operating with enhanced standards for seafarers . The work will also serve to ensure reduced profiles for potential environmental pollution.

www.southampton.ac.uk

Professor R Wood

TT33

Environment and Mitigation

Nickel-aluminium bronze pitting corrosion in seawater

R.C. Barik^{1,3}, J.A. Wharton¹, R.J.K. Wood¹, K.R. Stokes^{1,2}

- national Centre for Advanced Tribology at Southampton (nCATS), School of Engineering Sciences, University of Southampton, Highfield, SO17 IBJ, UK
- Jon.
 Physical Sciences Department (Dstl), Dstl Porton Down, Salisbury, Wiltshire, SP4 0JQ, UK.
 Current address: School of Engineering and Electronics, University of Edinburgh, Mayfield Road, Edinburgh, EH9 3JL, UK.

Introduction and background

- Nickel-aluminium bronze (NAB) is widely used in marine applications because of its high toughness and erosion-corrosion resistance
- · NAB is used for high performance propellers and seawater handling systems seawater valves and heat exchangers. Pitting and crevice corrosion for copper-based alloys is often attributed to a metal-ion concentration cell.
- Areas exposed to high copper-ion concentrations are considered to act as cathodic sites (with copper deposition sometimes observed).
- NAB may encounter corrosion related problems under in-service conditions:
- NAB can encounter variability in corrosion performance worldwide, *i.e.* different local environments.
 NAB components in naval vessels can be affected by their operational cycles (open / dock type seawater) –
- long periods in the dock compared with commercial vessels. Corrosion problems can lead to expensive repairs to NAB propellers and seawater intakes Propeller replacement costs can be £0.25 million (€0.31 million) and dry dock costs are £20k / day (€25k /
- NAB is known to be susceptible to localised corrosion, e.g.:
 Crevice corrosion rates as high as 0.7 to 1.0 mm.y⁻¹ have been reported compared with 0.25 mm.y⁻¹ for type 304 stainless steel. NAB is prone to selective phase corrosion (SPC).
- SPC may initiate pitting corrosion.

Results and discussion

The SEM study in Fig. 2 shows the NAB surface corrosion was initially confined to the eutectoid regions with slight attack of the copper rich α -phase within the α + κ_{III} eutectoid. While the eutectoid α -phase was preferentially attacked the α -grains show very little attack, this is a form of selective phase corrosion.

The accumulation of Cu₂O deposits at these locations will limit the diffusion (mass transport of species including: copper-ions, chloride and dissolved oxygen) towards and away from the NAB surface, thus there is the potential for a microenvironment to develop beneath the deposit. If the pH of this microenvironment becomes acidic, *e.g.* below pH 4.0, the κ_{III} -phase becomes anodic to the α -phase and corrodes preferentially

Fig. 3 illustrates the accumulation of initial corrosion products from SPC acting as a site for 'pitting' type attack.

 $\rm Cu_2O$ is **porous** and **electrically conducting** layer with the upper surface acting as a cathode and the lower surface as an anode.

In contrast to stainless steels, there is no preferred cathodic reactions on the surface surrounding the corrosion activity, thus, resulting in the observed rapid peripheral growth of corrosion around the





Southampton

School of Engineering Sciences



Research impact

The results and conclusions derived from the collaboration has been passed to many MOI Integrated Project Teams (IPTs) where NAB мор issues constitute a major, and costly, area of concern. Knowledge gained from biofouling interactions are also currently being promulgated and exploited through existing corrosion work groups.

Test material

Casting NAB (CuAI9Ni5Fe4Mn – NES 747 Part 2 spec.) used for naval applications is typically given a heat treatment at 675 °C for 2 to 6 hours.

- NAB is susceptible to selective phase corrosion due to its complex microstructure:
- Copper-rich α-phase.
 Plus, β-phase (retained martensite) and a series of κ-phases based on Fe₂Al and NiAl (with one exception κ₀ may be based on Fe₂Al or FeAl).





(Abc the

Conclusions

- On exposure the copper-rich α-phase was initially (during the first 6 months) susceptible to corrosion leaving the unattacked k-phases to create an adherent
- skeletal lattice. At localised sites, SPC occurred and due to
- At localised sites, SPC occurred and due to the continuous nature of the κ_{iii}-phase this resulted in the accumulation of corrosion products / deposits at these locations. The formation of a micro-environment beneath the deposit developed into a 'pitting' type phenomenon after prolonged exposures (within 15 months). Overall the nitting mechanism is
- Overall, the pitting mechanism is characterised by very wide although relatively shallow corrosion features.

Worked sponsored by dstl

Professor R Wood

Environment and Mitigation

Marine biofouling and antifouling coatings

L. Goodes¹, M. Salta¹, S. Werwinski¹, S. Dennington¹, J.A. Wharton¹, R.J.K. Wood¹, K.R. Stokes^{1,2} ¹ national Centre for Advanced Tribology at Southampton (nCATS), School of Engineering Sciences, University of Southampton, Highfield, SO17 1BJ, UK.
² Physical Sciences Department (Dsti), Dst Porton Down, Salisbury, Wiltshire, SP4 0J0, UK.

Introduction and background

Marine biofouling is defined as the undesirable accumulation of microorganisms, plants, and animals on artificial surfaces immersed in sea water. In the case of the underwater hull of a ship, the adverse effects caused by this biological settlement include:

- High frictional resistance, due to generated roughness, which leads to an increase of weight and subsequent potential speed reduction and loss of manoeuvrability. To compensate for this, higher fuel consumption is needed, which causes increased greenhouse gas emissions.
 It may also necessitate heavier and less energy efficient machinery. The increase in fuel consumption can be used to down a set of the set of t
- be up to 40%.
- An increase in the frequency of dry-docking operations, *i.e.* time is lost and resources are wasted when remedial measures are applied. Potentially harmful waste is also generated during this process.
 Deterioration of marine polymeric coatings so that corrosion, discolouration, and changes in the electrical
- conductivity can occur
- . Introduction of marine species into environments where they were not naturally present (invasive or non-
- Although the incorporation of tributyl tin (TBT) into coating systems has been widely used for its anti-fouling capacity, recently the use of TBT has been banned due to its toxic affects in the wider marine

environment. Furthermore, fresh concerns about the long-term effects of copper pollution in environmentally important estuaries and offshore areas are providing an incentive to study **new antifouling** solutions. Therefore, the need for new, effective and environmentally friendly coating systems has been the focus and challenge for the scientific community. The ideal antifouling coating would prevent marine growth as well as maintain a long performance life while keeping within increasingly strict environmental regulations.

Southampton

School of Engineering Sciences



Research impact

The fundamental underpinning science derived from the work has led to a very successful and reconsider international collaborative programme between the United Kingdom, France and the Netherlands. The project will develop a greater understanding of the influence of biofouling and the impact natural product antifouling coatings for ships

Project objectives

- Evaluation of emerging technologies to obtain environmentally friendly antifouling coatings with projected long term performance (6-10 years);
- Development of advanced accelerated test methods for assessing new natural products, including biocide free coatings, within a short period (< 1 year) which is representative of long-term in-service performance.



Discussion

In the marine environment, a wide variety of species illustrate antifouling abilities by several means, e.g. the use of chemical and physical defences, symbiotic relationships between host (e.g. algae) and epibionts (e.g. bacteria) that prevent fouling. The impediment of biofouling in a natural way, as observed in marine organisms, has triggered the scientific interest and led to the examination of marine natural products as a possible route for a novel antifouling technology.

Nearly 20,000 natural products have so far been described that originate from marine organisms. Since the early 1980s, a great number of marine natural products have been assayed against organisms implied in the biofouling process and several reviews dealing with their potential use as novel antifouling biocides have been realised.

Marine polymeric coatings, like most paint compositions, are made up from a binder and a series of pigments which include additives, colour and extenders. The antifouling additives are included in the top-coat or final coating layer of the multi-coat marine antifouling system. Thus, the binder and solvent selection need to be carefully tailored to the chemical properties of any new potential biocide

This collaborative research programme between the University of Southampton, the Institut des Sciences de l'Ingénieur de Toulon et du Var (France) and TNO (Netherlands) will investigate:

Survey and screen new types of emerging binders for effectiveness as a self-polishing copolymer, e.g. block silylated binders, see Fig. 2.



Fig. 2: C

Survey and screen new specific (natural product) biocides for antifouling efficacy and toxicological properties. Extracts of algae such as: (a) Chondrus crispus and (b) Bifurcaria bifurcata.



Fig. 3: Examples of Chro Bifurcaria bifurcata.

Characterisation of antifouling paint formulations by erosion, adhesion and mechanical properties.

Worked sponsored by

Noise and Vibration Control

J Dixon

Southampton Noise and Vibration Control

Recreational and Commercial Craft

Noise and vibration surveys and solutions Noise and vibration source identification New build and refit design reviews Transmission loss measurement Exhaust system layout advice Foot impact measurement Privacy measurement Torsional measurement Propeller selection advice





Contact John Dixon 02380 592273

Health and Environment

Noise and vibration exposure Passenger and crew comfort Development of codes of practice Development of standards Waterside planning inquiries Neighbourhood noise control Harbour noise surveys

"Working towards a Quieter Environment" ISVR Consulting

www.southampton.ac.uk

Professor D Macbeth



Power Flow Active Control of Aeroelastic Flutter for a Nonlinear Airfoil with Flap

Dr Y Xiong



Smart Materials and Structures with Hybrid Nonlinear Vibration Control for Marine Applications

Dr Y Xiong





Investigation of Numerical Methods for Achieving Energy Efficient Ships

Professor S Turnock



Professor S Turnock



Numerical Modelling of Scour around Complex 3D Structures

Professor S Turnock



Wave Making Drag Prediction for Improved Design of Marine Crafts

Dr M Tan



Professor RA Shenoi





The Influence of Surface Waves on the Added Resistance of Merchant Ships

Dr D Hudson



Vibrational Power Flow Analysis of Nonlinear Dynamic Systems and Applications

Dr Y Xiong



Posters by Author

	•
Ahmed, T.	ER15
Aktas, A.	TT20
Allen, R.	SG27
Badoe, C.	ER8, TT39
Barik, R.	TT33
Barton, J.	TT13, TT15, TT16, TT17, TT18, TT19, TT21
Battams, G.	TT18
Bett, B.	CE22, CE24
Billett, D.	CE10, ER2
Blake, J.	TT2, TT11, TT22
Blue, L.	SG1, SG5, SG6, SG7, SG8, SG9, SG10, SG23
Boyd, S.	ER12, TT14, TT20, TT2, TT18, TT19
Brown, S.	CE9
Bull, J.	CE16
Byfield, V.	CE11
Carling, P.	CE13
Carpenter, N.	CE5
Challenor, P.	CE1
Chapchap, A.	TT4
Chen, Z.	TT5
Collier, L.	SG27
Collier, R.	SG27
Comunian, R.	CE21
Crammond, G.	TT14
Crump, D.	TT19
Darby, S.	CE3
Davies, J.	TT12
Dedes, E.	ER ₇
Dixon, J.	TT35
Feng, A.	TT5
Fernandez Igelsias, M.	TT25
Foster, N.	SG18
Furlong, M.	CE19
Furth, M.	ER6
Gallagher, A.	ER12
Griffin, M.	SG26
Hall, S.	SG17, SG19, SG21
Halswell, P.	TT8
Hanson, S.	CE2, CE8
Hearn, G.	TT6, TT24
Hemingway, R.	CE1
Hill, C.	CE25, CE26
Hinde, C.	ER3
Hudson, D.	ER1, ER5, ER7, ER27, SG15, SG27, TT44
Humphrey, V.	CE17, CE18, ER11, TT29
Hydes, D.	CE28
Jones, S.	SG3
Kamaruddin, S.	
Kemp, P.	CE14
Leighton, T.	CE29
Lewin, P.	ER22, ER24
Li, L.	ER13
Li, Y.	ER14
Lloyd, T.	ER11

Macbeth, D.	TT25
Malmstein, M.	TT22
Man, S.	TT2
Marsh, R.	CE7
McPhail, S.	CE19
Medina-Elizade, M	
Mokrech, M.	CE2
Mowlem, M.	CE15
Myers, L.	ER17, ER18, ER19, ER20, ER21
Nicholls, R.	CE2, CE6, CE9
Nicholls-Lee, R.	ER16, SG15
Nikolic, D	SG27
Pebody, M.	CE19
Perrett, J.	CE19
Phillips, A.	CE27, TT2, TT39
Pinch, S.	SG16
Placidi, M.	ER9
Potter, M.	ER3
Raja, R.	ER3
Rattanasirir, P.	CE27
Rohling, E.	CE1
Sabeur, Z.	CE4
Sapouna, K.	TT23
Sear, D.	SG11, SG12, SG13, SG14, SG24, SG25
Schlör, J	SG2
Shenoi, RA.	ER10, ER23, SG27, TT10, TT12, TT20,
Curith M	TT26, TT30, TT31, TT32, TT38, TT43,
Smith, M.	<u>TT36</u>
Smythe-Wright, D.	CE20
Sobey, A.	TT9, TT25
Stanford, J.	CE1
Stanniland, H.	SG22
Stevenson, P.	CE19
Streeter, M.	TT11,
Sun, F.	TT7
Tan, M.	ER6, ER9, ER13, TT7, TT28, TT42
Taunton, D.	SG20, SG27, TT1
Temarel, P.	TT4, TT27
Thompson, C.	CE12
Thorn, A.	CE23
Townsend, N.	ER25
Turnock, S.	ER5, ER7, ER8, ER11, ER15, ER16, TT3,
	TT39, TT40, TT41
Underwood, J.	TT10
Wang, W.	TT13
Webb, A.	CE19
Wharton, J.	TT33, TT34
White, D.	CE19
Wilson, P.	CE27, TT8
Winden, B.	ER5
Wood, R.	TT33, TT34
Xiong, Y.	ER4, ER10, ER14, ER26, TT23, TT37, TT38, TT45
Xuereb, D.	ER3
Yang, J.	ER4, TT45
Yang, Z.	TT6
Zhao, N.	ER26, TT37
Zhu, G.	ER10, TT38
	, ,

SMMI Members

SIVINI Members	K.H.Luo@soton.ac.uk
	Dr Sally Denchfield, Engineering - Fluid Structure Interactions
Dr Patrick Doncaster, Biological Sciences - Molecular & Celullar	S.S.Denchfield@soton.ac.uk
cpd@soton.ac.uk	Dr Rachel Nicholls-Lee, Engineering - Fluid Structure Interactions R.F.Nicholls-Lee@soton.ac.uk
Dr Felix Eigenbrod, Biological Sciences - Environmental	Dr Alex Phillips, Engineering - Fluid Structure Interactions
F.Eigenbrod@soton.ac.uk	abp@soton.ac.uk
Dr Bill Keevil, Biological Sciences - Environmental C.W.Keevil@soton.ac.uk	Dr Adam Sobey, Engineering - Fluid Structure Interactions ajs502@soton.ac.uk
Dr Jeremy Webb, Biological Sciences - Molecular & Celullar J.S.Webb@soton.ac.uk	Dr Nick Townsend, Engineering - Fluid Structure Interactions N.C.Townsend@soton.ac.uk
Professor David Harrowven, Chemistry - Molecular Assembly,	Dr James Blake, Engineering - Fluid Structure Interactions
Function and Structure dch2@soton.ac.uk	J.I.R.Blake@soton.ac.uk
Professor John Owen, Chemistry - Electrochemistry J.R.Owen@soton.ac.uk	Dr Steve Boyd, Engineering - Fluid Structure Interactions S.W.Boyd@soton.ac.uk
Dr Robert Raja, Chemistry - Molecular Assembly, Function and Structure	Dr Zhimin Chen, Engineering - Fluid Structure Interactions z.chen@soton.ac.uk
R.Raja@soton.ac.uk	Professor Grant Hearn, Engineering - Fluid Structure Interactions G.E.Hearn@soton.ac.uk
Dr Gerald Muller, Civil Engineering - Energy & Climate Change G.Muller@soton.ac.uk	Professor W Geraint Price, Engineering - Fluid Structure Interactions W.G.Price@soton.ac.uk
Dr Luke Myers, Civil Engineering - Energy & Climate Change l.e.myers@soton.ac.uk;	Professor Ajit Shenoi, Engineering - Fluid Structure Interactions
Professor Robert Nicholls, Civil Engineering - Energy & Climate	r.a.shenoi@soton.ac.uk
Change R.J.Nicholls@soton.ac.uk Dr Paul Kemp, Civil Engineering - Environment	Dr Mingyi Tan, Engineering - Fluid Structure Interactions M.Tan@soton.ac.uk
P.Kemp@soton.ac.uk	Dr Dominic Taunton, Engineering - Fluid Structure Interactions D.J.Taunton@soton.ac.uk
Dr Simon Clubley, Civil Engineering - Infrastructure S.K.Clubley@soton.ac.uk	Professor Penny Temarel, Engineering - Fluid Structure Interactions
Professor David Richards, Civil Engineering - Infrastructure	P.Temarel@soton.ac.uk Professor Steve Turnock, Engineering - Fluid Structure Interactions
djr@soton.ac.uk Professor John Preston, Civil Engineering - Transportation	S.R.Turnock@soton.ac.uk
J.M.Preston@soton.ac.uk	Professor Philip Wilson, Engineering - Fluid Structure Interactions Philip.Wilson@soton.ac.uk
Dr Ben Waterson Civil Engineering - Transportation B.J.Waterson@soton.ac.uk	Dr Yeping Xiong, Engineering - Fluid Structure Interactions Y.Xiong@soton.ac.uk
Professor AbuBakr Bahaj, Civil Engineering - Energy & Climate Change A.S.Bahaj@soton.ac.uk	Dr Alan Chambers, Engineering - Materials
Dr William Battan, Civil Engineering - Energy & Climate Change	A.R.Chambers@soton.ac.uk Dr Brian Mellor, Engineering - Materials
wmjb@soton.ac.uk Dr Sally Brown, Civil Engineering - Energy & Climate Change	B.G.Mellor@soton.ac.uk
sb20@soton.ac.uk	Professor Frank Walsh, Engineering - Materials F.C.Walsh@soton.ac.uk
Professor John Chaplin, Civil Engineering - Energy & Climate Change J.R.Chaplin@soton.ac.uk	Professor Janice Barton, Engineering Sciences -
Professor Charles Banks, Civil Engineering - Environment	Fluid Structure Interactions/Materials J.M.Barton@soton.ac.uk
c.j.banks@soton.ac.uk	Professor Peter Atkinson, Geography -
Dr Derek Clarke, Civil Engineering - Environment D.Clarke@soton.ac.uk	Global Environmental Change and Earth Observation
Dr Paul Lewin, Electronics & Computer Science	P.M.Atkinson@soton.ac.uk
pll@ecs.soton.ac.uk	Professor Paul Carling, Geography - Earth Surface Dynamics P.A.Carling@soton.ac.uk
Dr Colin Upstill, Electronics & Computer Science c.upstill@soton.ac.uk	Dr Stephen Darby, Geography - Earth Surface Dynamics S.E.Darby@soton.ac.uk
Professor John McBride, Engineering - Electro-mechanical J.W.Mcbride@soton.ac.uk	Professor David Sear, Geography - Earth Surface Dynamics
Dr Bharathram Ganapathisubramani, Engineering -	D.Sear@soton.ac.uk
Aerodynamics & Flight Mechanics	Professor Steven Pinch, Geography - Economy, Society and Space S.P.Pinch@soton.ac.uk
G.Bharath@soton.ac.uk Dr Kamal Djidjeli, Engineering - Computational Engineering & Design	Professor Peter Sunley, Geography - Economy, Society and Space P.J.Sunley@soton.ac.uk
kkd@soton.ac.uk Dr Dirk Gorissen, Engineering - Computational Engineering & Design	Mr Chris Hill, Geography - Geodata
Dirk.Gorissen@soton.ac.uk	cth@geodata.soton.ac.uk Mr Jason Sadler, Geography - Geodata
Professor Martyn Hill, Engineering - Electro-mechanical M.Hill@soton.ac.uk	jds@geodata.soton.ac.uk
Dr Dominic Hudson, Engineering - Energy Technology	Dr Emma Tompkins, Geography -
dominic@soton.ac.uk	Global Environmental Change and Earth Observation E.L.Tompkins@soton.ac.uk
146	E.L. TOMPKINS@SOLON.AC.UK

Professor Kai Luo, Engineering - Energy Technology

K.H.Luo@soton.ac.uk

Mr J Richard Collier, Health Sciences -	Professor Natalie Lee, Insurance Law
Rehabilitation and Health Technologies	hoslaw@soton.ac.uk
Richard.Collier@soton.ac.uk	Dr Matt Parker, ISVR Consulting
Professor Bill Brooks, Humanities	m.j.parker@soton.ac.uk
W.G.Brooks@soton.ac.uk	Dr Malcolm Smith, ISVR Consulting
Professor Simon Keay, Humanities - Classical & Historical Archaeology	mgs@isvr.soton.ac.uk
S.J.Keay@soton.ac.uk	Dr Zoheir Sabeur, IT Innovation Centre
Professor Matthew Johnson, Humanities - Classical & Historical Archaeology	zas@it-innovation.soton.ac.uk
M.H.Johnson@soton.ac.uk	Professor Charles Debattista, Law C.Debattista@soton.ac.uk
Dr Mary Hammond, Humanities - English	Dr Gunes Erdogan, Management
E.M.Hammond@soton.ac.uk	g.erdogan@soton.ac.uk
Dr Stephanie Jones, Humanities - English	Dr Mary Morrison, Management
S.J.Jones@soton.ac.uk	M.S.Morrison@soton.ac.uk
Dr Marianne O'Doherty, Humanities - English	Professor Stephen Ward, Management - Centre for Risk Research
M.O'Doherty@soton.ac.uk	scw@soton.ac.uk
Professor Tim Bergfelder, Humanities - Film	Dr Tolga Bektas, Management - CORMSIS
T.A.Bergfelder@soton.ac.uk	T.Bektas@soton.ac.uk
Professor John Oldfield, Humanities - History	Professor Julia Bennell, Management - CORMSIS
jro1@soton.ac.uk	J.A.Bennell@soton.ac.uk
Dr Christer Petley, Humanities - History	Professor Sally Brailsford, Management - CORMSIS
C.Petley@soton.ac.uk	S.C.Brailsford@soton.ac.uk
Dr Francois Soyer, Humanities - History	Dr Yue Wu, Management - CORMSIS
F.J.Soyer@soton.ac.uk	Y.Wu@soton.ac.uk
Dr Fraser Sturt, Humanities - Maritime Archaeology F.Sturt@soton.ac.uk	Professor Taufiq Choudhry, Management - Finance and Banking
Dr James Jordan, Humanities - Parkes Institute	t.choudhry@soton.ac.uk
J.A.Jordan@soton.ac.uk	Professor Douglas Macbeth, Management - Supply Chain Management
Professor Tony Kushner, Humanities - The Parkes Institute	D.K.Macbeth@soton.ac.uk
A.R.Kushner@soton.ac.uk	Professor Yvonne Baatz, Maritime Law
Professor Joachim Schloer, Humanities - The Parkes Institute	ymb@soton.ac.uk
J.Schloer@soton.ac.uk	Mr John Dunt, Maritime Law
Dr Graeme Earl, Humanities -Archaeological Computing graeme.	J.Dunt@soton.ac.uk
earl@soton.ac.uk	Ms Johanna Hjalmarsson, Maritime Law
Dr Lucy Blue, Humanities -Maritime Archaeology	J.Hjalmarsson@soton.ac.uk
L.Blue@soton.ac.uk	Professor Robert Merkin, Maritime Law
Dr Jon Adams, Humanities -Maritime Archaeology	R.Merkin@soton.ac.uk
jjra@soton.ac.uk	Captain Richard Pilley, Maritime Law
Professor Phillip Joseph, Institute of Sound and Vibration Research -	R.Pilley@soton.ac.uk
Fluid Dynamics & Acoustics	Professor Andrew Serdy, Maritime Law
pfj@isvr.soton.ac.uk	A.L.Serdy@soton.ac.uk
Professor Victor Humphrey, Institute of Sound and Vibration Research - Fluid Dynamics & Acoustics	Mr Richard Shaw, Maritime Law
vh@isvr.soton.ac.uk	rshaw@soton.ac.uk
Professor Tim Leighton, Institute of Sound and Vibration Research -	Professor Hilton Staniland, Maritime Law H.Staniland@soton.ac.uk
Fluid Dynamics & Acoustics	Mr Filippo Lorenzon, Maritime Law
t.g.leighton@soton.ac.uk	F.Lorenzon@soton.ac.uk
Professor Mike Griffin, Institute of Sound and Vibration Research -	Dr Melis Ozdel, Maritime Law
Human Sciences	M.Ozdel@soton.ac.uk
M.J.Griffin@soton.ac.uk	Professor Mikis Tsimplis, Maritime Law
Professor Steve Daley, Institute of Sound and Vibration Research -	M.N.Tsimplis@soton.ac.uk
Signal Processing & Control	Dr Giampaolo D'Allessandro, Mathematics - Applied
S.Daley@soton.ac.uk	dales@soton.ac.uk
Professor Robert Allen, Institute of Sound and Vibration Research -	Professor Colin Please, Mathematics - Applied
Signal Processing & Control R.Allen@soton.ac.uk	C.P.Please@soton.ac.uk
Dr Dragana Nikolić, Institute of Sound and Vibration Research -	Professor James Vickers, Mathematics - Applied
Signal Processing & Control	J.A.Vickers@soton.ac.uk
D.Nikolic@soton.ac.uk	Dr Ian Rowley, Mathematics - Enterprise
Professor Paul White, Institute of Sound and Vibration Research -	I.T.Rowley@soton.ac.uk
Signal Processing & Control	Professor Jorg Fliege, Mathematics - Operational Research
prw@isvr.soton.ac.uk	J.Fliege@soton.ac.uk
Dr Ozlem Gurses, Insurance Law	Professor Chris Potts Mathematics - Operational Research
O.Gurses@soton.ac.uk	C.N.Potts@soton.ac.uk

Dr Jacek Brodzki, Mathematics - Pure J.Brodzki@soton.ac.uk	Mr Roland Rogers, National Oceanography Centre, National Marine Facilities Sea Systems
Dr Simon Dennington, national Centre for Advanced Tribology at	rxr@noc.ac.uk
Southampton (nCATS)	Mr Kevin Saw, National Oceanography Centre -
S.P.Dennington@soton.ac.uk	Ocean Technology and Engineering
Dr Monica Ratoi, national Centre for Advanced Tribology at	ksw@noc.ac.uk
Southampton (nCATS)	Professor Meric Srokosz, National Oceanography Centre, Marine
M.Ratoi@soton.ac.uk	Physics and Ocean Climate
Dr Julian Wharton national Centre for Advanced Tribology at	mas@noc.ac.uk
Southampton (nCATS) J.A.Wharton@soton.ac.uk	Dr Patrick Stevenson, Ocean & Earth Science -
Professor Robert Wood, National Centre for Advanced Tribology at	Ocean Biogeochemistry and Ecosystems pgs13@noc.soton.ac.uk
Southampton (nCATS)	Mr Pete Stevenson, National Oceanography Centre, National
r.wood@soton.ac.uk	Marine Facilities
Professor Eric Achterberg, Ocean & Earth Science -	pst@noc.ac.uk
Ocean Biogeochemistry and Ecosystems	Dr Peter Talling, National Oceanography Centre -
eric@noc.soton.ac.uk	Marine Geoscience
Dr Brian Bett, National Oceanography Centre -	peter.talling@noc.soton.ac.uk
Ocean Biogeochemistry and Ecosystems	Dr Charlie Thompson, Ocean and Earth Science - Coastal Processes
bjb@noc.ac.uk	celt1@noc.soton.ac.uk
Dr David Billett, National Oceanography Centre -	Mr Peter Winter, National Oceanography Centre, Business
Ocean Biogeochemistry and Ecosystems	Support Services
dsmb@noc.ac.uk	peter.winter@noc.ac.uk
Professor Jon Bull, Ocean & Earth Science - Geology and Geophysics J.M.Bull@soton.ac.uk	Mrs Jacky Wood, National Oceanography Centre, International and Strategic Partnerships Office
Dr Val Byfield, National Oceanography Centre -	jkwo@noc.ac.uk
Marine Physics and Ocean Climate	Professor Ian Wright, National Oceanography Centre, Directorate of
val.byfield@noc.ac.uk	Science and Technology
Mr Rob Curry, National Oceanography Centre -	i.wright@noc.ac.uk
Communications Team	Professor Carl Amos, Ocean & Earth Science - Geology & Geophysics C.L.Amos@soton.ac.uk
rob.curry@noc.ac.uk Mr Mike Douglas, National Oceanography Centre - Communications	Dr Thomas Bibby, Ocean & Earth Science - Ocean Biogeochemistry
Team mike.douglas@noc.ac.uk	and Ecosystems tsb@noc.soton.ac.uk
Mr Alan Evans, National Oceanography Centre - Marine Geoscience alan.evans@noc.ac.uk	Dr Simon Boxall, Ocean & Earth Science - Physical Oceanography simon.boxall@soton.ac.uk
Dr Maarten Furlong, National Oceanography Centre -	Professor Harry Bryden, Ocean & Earth Science - Physical
Ocean Technology and Engineering	Oceanography H.L.Bryden@soton.ac.uk
maaten.furlong@noc.ac.uk	Dr Jon Copley, Ocean & Earth Science -
Professor Gwyn Griffiths, National Oceanography Centre - Ocean Technology and Engineering	Ocean Biogeochemistry and Ecosystems jtc@noc.soton.ac.uk
gxg@noc.soton.ac.uk	Professor Ian Croudace, Ocean & Earth Science - Geochemistry
Mr Steve Hall, National Oceanography Centre, International and	iwc@noc.soton.ac.uk
Strategic Partnerships	Dr Justin Dix, Ocean & Earth Science - Geology & Geophysics
sph@noc.ac.uk	J.K.Dix@soton.ac.uk
Mr Peter Hunter, National Oceanography Centre -	Dr Gareth Dyke, Ocean & Earth Science -
Marine Geoscience	Ocean Biogeochemistry and Ecosystems
peter.hunter@noc.ac.uk	gareth.dyke@soton.ac.uk
Dr David Hydes, National Oceanography Centre -	Dr Thomas Gernon, Ocean & Earth Science - Geology & Geophysics
Ocean Biogeochemistry and Ecosystems	thomas.gernon@noc.soton.ac.uk
djh@noc.ac.uk	Dr Ian Harding, Ocean & Earth Science -
Dr Colin Jacobs, National Oceanography Centre -	Palaeoceanography and Palaeoclimate
Marine Geoscience	ich@noc.soton.ac.uk
clj@noc.ac.uk	Dr Nicholas Harman, Ocean & Earth Science - Geology & Geophysics
Professor Richard Lampitt, National Oceanography Centre - Ocean Biogeochemistry and Ecosystems	N.Harmon@noc.soton.ac.uk
r.lampitt@noc.ac.uk	Dr Chris Hauton, Ocean & Earth Science -
Mr Steve McPhail, National Oceanography Centre -	Ocean Biogeochemistry and Ecosystems ch10@noc.soton.ac.uk
Ocean Technology and Engineering	
sdm@noc.ac.uk	Professor Stephen Hawkins, Ocean & Earth Science - Ocean Biogeochemistry and Ecosystems
Dr Matt Mowlem, National Oceanography Centre -	S.J.Hawkins@soton.ac.uk
Ocean Technology and Engineering	Dr Lawrence Hawkins, Ocean & Earth Science -
matm@noc.ac.uk	Ocean Biogeochemistry and Ecosystems
Professor Lindsay Parson, Maritime Zone Solutions Ltd - UK	leh@noc.soton.ac.uk
Lindsay.Parson@maritimezonesolutions.com	Dr Tim Henstock, Ocean & Earth Science - Geology & Geophysics
	then@noc.soton.ac.uk

Dr Debora Iglesias-Rodriguez, Ocean & Earth Science -	Dr Clive Truem
Ocean Biogeochemistry and Ecosystems	trueman@noc.
debora.iglesias-rodriguez@noc.soton.ac.uk	Professor Paul
Dr Antony Jensen, Ocean & Earth Science -	Ocean Biogeoc
Ocean Biogeochemistry and Ecosystems	pat8@noc.soto
acj@noc.soton.ac.uk	Dr Toby Tyrrel
Dr Derek Keir, Ocean & Earth Science - Geology & Geophysics	Palaeoceanogra
D.Keir@soton.ac.uk	Toby.Tyrrell@s
Professor Alan Kemp, Ocean & Earth Science -	Dr Neil Wells, (
Palaeoceanography and Palaeoclimate	Palaeoceanogra
aesk@noc.soton.ac.uk	N.C.Wells@sot
Dr Cathy Lucas, Ocean & Earth Science -	Dr Jorg Wieden
Ocean Biogeochemistry and Ecosystems	Ocean Biogeoc
cathy.lucas@noc.soton.ac.uk	joerg.wiedenma
Dr Robert Marsh, Ocean & Earth Science - Physical Oceanography	Dr John Williar
robert.marsh@noc.soton.ac.uk	Ocean Biogeoc
Professor John Marshall, Ocean & Earth Science -	J.Williams@sot
Palaeoceanography and Palaeoclimate	Professor Paul
jeam@noc.soton.ac.uk	Palaeoceanogra
Dr Lisa McNeill, Ocean & Earth Science - Geology & Geophysics	paul.wilson@n
lcmn@noc.soton.ac.uk	Mr Kevin Forsh
Professor Rachel Mills, Ocean & Earth Science - Geochemistry	K.A.forshaw@s
Rachel.Mills@soton.ac.uk	Mrs Sue Smith
Professor Tim Minshull, Ocean & Earth Science -	s.b.smith@soto
Geology & Geophysics tim.minshull@noc.soton.ac.uk	Dr Simon Quin S.Quinn@soto
-	-
Dr Kevin Oliver, Ocean & Earth Science - Physical Oceanography K.Oliver@noc.soton.ac.uk	Dr Peter Smith P.Smith1@soto
Professor Heiko Palike, Ocean & Earth Sciences -	Professor Nyov
Palaeoceanography and Palaeoclimate	Demography ar
heiko@noc.soton.ac.uk	N.J.Madise@sc
Professor Martin Palmer, Ocean & Earth Science - Geochemistry	Professor Jane
m.palmer@noc.soton.ac.uk	Demography ar
Dr Duncan Purdie, Ocean & Earth Science -	J.C.Falkingham
Ocean Biogeochemistry and Ecosystems	Dr Milena Buch
duncan.purdie@noc.soton.ac.uk	M.Buechs@sot
Dr Stephen Roberts, Ocean & Earth Science - Geochemistry	Professor John
steve.roberts@noc.soton.ac.uk	Politics and Int
Professor Andrew Roberts, Ocean & Earth Science -	J.Simpson@sot
Geology & Geophysics	Professor Grah
arob@noc.soton.ac.uk	Politics and Int
Professor Ian Robinson, Ocean & Earth Science -	G.M.Smith@so
Physical Oceanography	Professor Jonat
isr@noc.soton.ac.uk	J.J.Forster@sot
Professor Eelco J Rohling, Ocean & Earth Science -	Dr John Gillett,
Palaeoceanography and Palaeoclimate	J.R.Gillett@sot
e.rohling@noc.soton.ac.uk	Mr Dickon Bucl D.M.Buckland@
Dr Catherine Rychert, Ocean & Earth Science - Geology & Geophysics	
C.Rychert@soton.ac.uk	Mr Andy Claugh
Dr Martin Sheader, Ocean & Earth Science - Ocean Biogeochemistry	A.R.Claughton Mr Barry Deaki
and Ecosystems martin.sheader@noc.soton.ac.uk	B.Deakin@sotc
Professor John Shepherd, Ocean & Earth Science -	Mr Chris Harm
Physical Oceanography	C.M.Harmer@s
jgs@noc.soton.ac.uk	Mr Lloyd Jones
Professor Martin Sinha, Ocean & Earth Science -	ljones@soton.a
Geology & Geophysics	Dr Richard Pen
Martin.Sinha@noc.soton.ac.uk	R.Pemberton@
Professor Peter Statham, Ocean & Earth Science -	Dr Martyn Prin
Ocean Biogeochemistry and Ecosystems	M.P.Prince@so
pjs@noc.soton.ac.uk	Mr Mateo Scarp
Dr Rex Taylor, Ocean & Earth Science - Geochemistry	M.Scarponi@so
rex@noc.soton.ac.uk	Dr Sandy Wrigh
Professor Damon Teagle, Ocean & Earth Science - Geochemistry	A.M.Wright@so
Damon.Teagle@southampton.ac.uk	
Dr Sven Thatje, Ocean & Earth Science -	
Ocean Biogeochemistry and Ecosystems Sven.Thatje@noc.soton.ac.uk	

man, Ocean & Earth Science - Geochemistry .soton.ac.uk Tyler, Ocean & Earth Science chemistry and Ecosystems on.ac.uk ell, Ocean & Earth Science raphy and Palaeoclimate soton.ac.uk Ocean & Earth Science raphy and Palaeoclimate oton.ac.uk enmann, Ocean & Earth Science chemistry and Ecosystems nann@noc.soton.ac.uk ams, Ocean & Earth Science chemistry and Ecosystems oton.ac.uk Wilson, Ocean & Earth Science raphy and Palaeoclimate noc.soton.ac.uk haw, Research and Innovation Services soton.ac.uk Research and Innovation Services ton.ac.uk nn, Research Institute for Industry on.ac.uk h, Social Sciences on.ac.uk vani Madise,Social Sciences and Social Statistics soton.ac.uk - Falkingham, Social Sciences and International Social Policy m@soton.ac.uk chs, Social Sciences - Sociology and Social Policy ton.ac.uk n Simpson, Social Sciences iternational Relations oton.ac.uk ham Smith, Social Sciences ternational Relations oton.ac.uk athan Forster, Mathematics - Statistics oton.ac.uk t, Winchester School of Art oton.ac.uk ckland, WUMTIA l@soton.ac.uk ghton, WUMTIA n@soton.ac.uk kin, WUMTIA ton.ac.uk ner, WUMTIA Øsoton.ac.uk es, WUMTIA .ac.uk mberton, WUMTIA @soton.ac.uk nce, WUMTIA oton.ac.uk rponi, WUMTIA soton.ac.uk ght, WUMTIA soton.ac.uk

Notes

Notes

www.southampton.ac.uk/smmi smmi@soton.ac.uk +44 (0) 23 8059 2316